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Directors’ report

The directors present ther report and audited financial statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2013

Principal activities and operations

The pnncipal activities and operations of the Group are to create and license market-leading processor solutions for graphics, wideo, vision,
CPU and embedded processing, mult-standard communications, cross-platform VVolP and VoLTE, and cloud connectivity These silicon
and software intellectuat property ('IP") solutions for system-on-chip {'SoC’) are complemented by an extensive portiolio of software drvers
developer tools and extensive markat and technology-focused ecosystems

The target markets include mobile phone, handheld multimedia devices, home censumer, mebile and tablat computing in-car electronics,
telecoms, health, smart energy and connected sensars and controllers The Group's licensees include many of the world's leading
semiconductor, network operator and electronics OEM/QDM companies

The Group has two divisions The Technology division 1s a semiconductor, software and cloud IP licensing busness which provides market-
ieading mulumedia and communications capabilites for complex SoG devices The Pure division designs and manufactures innovative
consumer products, using Imagination s technologies as a key differentiator alongside high qually product design

Business review

The purpose of the business review 1s to Inform shareholders of the Company and help them assess how the directors have performed
therr duty under section 172 of the Companies Act 2008 (duly to promote the success of the Company) The business review provides a
balanced and comprehensive analysis of the development and performance of the busingss dunng the financial year ended 30 April 2013
The information set out in the business review ncludes the Group Key Performance Indicators, a description of the pnncipal nsks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an explanation of how value will be genarated and preserved over the longer term (the business model),
and also the strategy for delivering the objectives of the Group These sections are Incorparated by reference and deemed to form part of
this report

The key performance indicators used in the business are summarnsed below The performance of the busness in terms of these INAICAIQNS
15 considered n the Chief Executive’s Review in pages 3 to 11 of the annual report and financial statements

Year to Year to
30 Apnl 2013 30 Apnt 2012 %
Technology business
Licensing Revenue £29 Om £34 4m {16%)
Partner Chip Design Wins 158 136 16%
Partner Chips Shipping 84 80 40%
Partner Chips Shipped {units) 535m 325m 65%
Royalty Revenue £85 Om £63 8m 49%
Pure business
Revenue £25 8m £28 3m {12%)
Adjusted operating loss™ (26 4m) (£2 9m)
Group
Revenue £151 5m €127 5m 19%
Gross Profit £130 6m £108 5m 23%
Adjusied Profit before taxation®* £33 5m €36 8m (10%)
Profit before taxation £12 2m £28 5m (57%6)
Net debt £45 6m £60 'm (25%)

* Exciudes MIPS units of 185mn penaod from 7 Feb 2013 1o 30 Aprl 2013
* The reconciliation from reported profit 10 adjusted profit 1s set out n note 2

Principal nsks and uncertainties

There are a number of nsks and uncertainties which could impact the Group's perforrance The Group has a nsk management structure
in place which 1s designed to identify, manage and mtigate business nsk The relevant structures are more fully described in the Group's

41



nternal control and risk management procedures in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 49 The Group has expenenced,

and may in the future expenence, fluctuations in the results of its operations There are a number of factors that can affect tha resuilts,

for the Technology business, these nclude the tming of new licence agreements with partners and the timing and volume of praducts
incorporatng the Group's technology shipped by our pariners The Group seeks to reduce this nsk by both broadening the number of
pariners who utdize the Groug's technology as well as widening the number of market segments that are targeted by the Group's partners
For the Pure business 1hese factors also include the rate of adoption of digital radio and other product technologies worldwide and the
contnuation of the supply of products from Chinese manufacturers The Group has mitigated the latter by spreading the manufacture of the
Group's products across a number of manufacturers in order to reduce the reliance on any one manufacturer

The Group operates In a fast moving competitive marketplace charactenzed by rapid changes in technology The Group's result will be
impacted by the introduction of new technologies and products by the Group and by the Group's competitors as they respond to these
changes n technology In order to mitigate nsk, the Group holds detaled cralogue with existing partners, as well as systems companies and
ndustry bodies, n order 10 align its future products with advances 1n technology and market requirements

As a technalogy business, the development and ownership of intellectual property 1s fundamental to the Group’s performance Whilst the
Group relies on patent copyright, trademark and other intellectual property laws to establish and protect its proprietary nghts, it cannot
be certain that its propnetary nghts will not be challenged, invalidated, crcumvented or used without the Group s authonzation The
Group mitigates the nsk by filng patents trademnarks and registered designs as appropnate 1o protect its inteflectual property and through
moniiorng technologies promoted by third parties

The Group transacts licence and development agreements with customers and purchases of products for Pure primanly in US dollars and,
therefore the Group's earnings are exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates The Group reviews its foreign exchange exposure on
a regutar basis and, whers Lhere 18 a matenal exposure to exchange rate fluctuations and the Board considers i appropnate, reduces the
nsk by currency hedging on net recevable/payable balances

The Group's performance 15 also subject to external macro-economic conditions Changes in factors such as government tebt levels,
interest rates, nflation, unemployment and commodity prices can create uncertanty in the Group’s markets and affect consumer spending
This may rasult n the Group's customers and potential customers delaying the placing of orders with the Group and/or the reduced
shipment of products incorporating the Group's technology [0 turn both of these would adversely affect the Group's result

Following the acquisimon of MIPS Technologies, (nc there ara risks surrounding the successful itegration of this business into the Group
and therefore whether the anticipated returns will be achieved The Group has mitigated these nsks Dy conducting significant due diligence
and integration planning for this acquisiton Particular care was taken when considenng the impact that the acquisition would have on
staff both within MIPS and within the Group Foliowing the completion of the acquisition a detaled integration plan has been followed and
progress aganst this plan 1s being reported to the Board at regular intervals with appropriate discussion on any areas of concern

Future developments

The Groug Intends to continue to develop its range of graphics, video, display, processing and communication technologies for use In
SoC devices The Group will market these products to existing and new customers with a view 10 entering into commercial agreements for
customers to (ncorporata the Group's technologes in therr SeC devices

The Pure business will continue to develop addional praducts using the Group's digital radio technology and internst connectivity/
streaming audio technology These products will be marketed to existing customers in the UK and increasingly to overseas customers as
markets emerge worldwide

Directors
The following served as directors of the Company dunng the financial year

Geoff Shingles (Chairman)

Sir Hossen Yassaie (Chief Executive Officer)

Richard Smith {Chief Financial Officer)

Andrew Heath {indepandent non-executive director — appointed 1 August 2012)
Gilles Delfassy (independent non-executive director)

Dawvid Anderson (Senior Independent Director {'SID’j}

Dawvid Hurst-Brown (non-executive director)

lan Pearson (non-executive direcior)




Full biographical details for the above are set out on pages 38-39 During the year David Anderson replaced lan Pearson as SIO and
Andrew Heath replaced lan Pearson as Charr of the Remuneration Commitiee lan Pearson continues 10 serve as a non-executive director
and 1s a member of both the Remuneration and Audit Commiltees

In accordance with the principles of the UK Ceorporate Governance Code (the Code'), all directors will retire and will present themseives for
re-elgction annually

Director’s indemnity arrangements

The Company s Articles of Association has a qualifying ndemnity provision for the beneft of each director and former director who hetd
office dunng the financial year The Group has also purchased and mantaned Directors’ and Officers” liability insurance throughout the
financial year The cover imit 1s £10 000 000 n the aggregate Nerther cover 1s avalable in the event that the director concerned is proved 1o
have acted fraudulently

Directors’ interests

Interests of the directors in Company shares and share opbons are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 59 1o 65, also
included are details of directors' remuneraton and service contracts

Financial instruments '

The Group s inancial nsk management objectives and peolicies are set out within note 19 to the financial statements along with details of the
Groups exposure to market risk, credit nisk and lguidity risk

Research and development
The Group spent £83,956,000 (2012 £59,633,000) on research and development and advanced technology projects

Charitable donations

Durng the financial year the Group donated £3,643 (2012 £3.785) for the benefit of chantable causes These donations principally
compnsed of cash The Group does not make any political donaticns

Share capital

Details of the 1ssued share capital together with detalls of movements in the 1ssued share capital of Imagination Technologies Group plc
during the financial year are shown In note 16 which1s Incorporated and deemed to be part of this report

As at 30 Aprl 2013, the Company's share capital comprised & single class of ordinary share of 10 pence and there were 265,711 788
ordinary shares w1 1ssue, of which 1,793,940 (2012 3,601 090) were held in Trust All of the Company's 1ssued shares are fully pad up and
rank equally in all respects

The nghts and obligations attaching 1o those shares are set out in the Company’s Articles of Asscciation The holders of ordinary sharegs are
entitled to attend and speak at general mestings exercise ther nght to vote {one vote for each share held) and to appoint a proxy

There are no specific restrctions on the size of holding nar on the transfer of ordinary shares ather than restnctions imposed by law For
example under Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006 restnctions may be imposed for falure to supply Information required to be disclosed
Similarty restnctions imposed pursuant to the Financial Conduct Authonty {‘FCAY) Listing Rules restneting individuzls exercising therr nghts n
certain penods

Authority to allot

At the AGM in 2012, shareholders approved a resofution to give directors the authority to allot ordinary shares up to an aggregate norminal
amount of £8,808,384 {n addition, shareholders provided approval to directors 10 allot up to an aggregate nominal amount of £17,616,768
In connection with an offer by way of a nghts 1ssue in accordance with ABI guidance The directors have no present intention to make use
of the authority sought under this resolution except to satisfy share awards under employee share schemes The authonty will expire on the
earlier of the 31 October 2013 or at the conclusion of the AGM in 2013 and will be propased for renewal again at this year's AGM
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Purchase of own shares

At the AGM in 2012, authonty was granted to the Company to purchase its own shares in the market up to a maximum aggregate number
of 26,425 152 shares, being approximately 10% of the 1ssued share captal The directors have not previously exercised authority granted
and have no present iInfention 10 make use of the authorty sought The current authonty will expire the earlier of the 31 October 201 3

or at the canclusion of the AGM in 2013 The Company would hke to retan the flexibility offered by this resclution and it wil therefore be
proposed again at this year s AGM

Substantial interests
As at 7 June 2013 the Company was aware of the following interests in its shares

Ordinary Shares of 10p Percentage

in the Company Holding

Intel Capital Corporation 38,396,664 14 45%
AXA Financial SA 28,006,149 10 54%
M&G Investment Management Limited 25,191,353 9 48%
Apple Inc 23,047,770 8 87%

Essential contracts

There are a large number of agreements Ik place with the Group's customers/partners There are no parties with whom the Group has
contractual or other arrangements which are essential to the business of the Group

Change of control

The Company's share-based ncentve plans contain provisions relating to a change of control The outstanding long-term incentive plans,
share awards and performance share award 10 the CEO and the performance share award to the CFQ would normally vest and become
exercisable on a change of control of the Company, subject to the satisfaction of the performance conditions

There are no significant agreements to which the Group 1s a party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control

Employee involvement

The Group acknowledges the importance and contnbution of its employees and as a global business values people from alf cultures,
nationaliiigs, races, religions, and ethnicities regardless of charactenstics such as age, gender, disability or sexual orientation There 1S
great demand for highly qualified staff withun the group and disability 1s not seen as an inhibitar to emptoyment or career development In
a situation where an employee becomes disabled dunng therr employment the Group, wherever possible will provide assistance to allow
them to continue In therr existing role or adapt if necessary or offer training for another position

Across the Group there s considerable value placed on the involvement of employees in the decision making process To this end reguiar
departmental meetings are held to discuss strategy and future developments and any significant outputs are then fed back to semior
management This helps the flow of ideas through the Group and allows employees to see therr contnbutions are valued

Employee engagement with the whole Group 1s highly prientized and there a number of communication channels in place to help
employeas develop therr knowledge of the business These channels include regular presentations by the CEO and CFO to staff covenng
the Group's performance, strategy, vision and operational developments Thereis a quarterly Group magazine, namely 'Imagineer which
1s used to report evenis and actwities to all employees worldwide, covenng things like the opening of new offices around the globe
ntroducing niew starters to the Group, arrval of chiidren of employees and retirement trbutes to employees

Furthermore employes ownership 1s encouraged wa the Company's global share schemes The Company runs an employee share plan
and all employees globally receve share awards on a bi-annual basis A Save As You Earn ('SAYE") scheme has been operating in the UK
since 2001 and employees are given the opportunity to participate annually The Group believes shares are a key tool to motivate and retan
employees




Corporate governance
The Corporate Governance statement on pages 47 to 51 1s deemed to form part of this report

Corporate social responsibility

Information relating to employaes, shareholders graduate recruitment, scholarship sponsorship, charnitable work in the local community and
enwonment are provided in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report on pages 55 to 58

Creditor payment policy

It 1s Group policy to agree payment terms with suppliers when negotiating contracts or transactions The Group ensures that, subject to any
necessary variaions which may resuit from supplier-related problems the agreed payment terms are adhered 10

The number of days billngs from suppliers outstanding to the Group at 30 April 2013 was 42 (2012 43 days) The parent Company IS
purely a holding Company with investments and does not have trade creditors

Annual General Meeting

The 2013 Annual General Meeting 'AGM) of the Company will be held at Imagination House Home Park Estate Kings Langley,
Hertfordshire WD4 BLZ commencing 11am on 20 September 2013 The Notice of Annual General Meeting with full description of the
business to be conducted 1s set out at www imgtec cem

A resolution 1s to be proposed at the AGM for the reappointment of KPMG as auditors of the Group

Directors’ statement of responsibility

Going concern
As set out In note 1 Accounting policies, the directors consider it appropriate to continue ¢ adopt the gong concern basis in prepanng the
financial statements

Responsibility for prepanng financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the Group and parent Company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial year Under that law they
are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
EU {IFRS } and applicable law and have elected 1o prepars the parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting
Siandards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of
the state of affars of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or ioss for that penod

In prepanng each of the Group and parent Company financial staternents the directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

* make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

= for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

= for the parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explained In the parent Company financial staterments, and

« prepare the financial statement on the going concern basis unless 1t s napproprate o presume that the Group and the parent Company
will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the parent Company's
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transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure
that its inancial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for prepanng a direstars’ report, directors' remuneration report and
a corporate governance statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial nformation included on the Company's
website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
Junsdictions

Disclosure of information to auditors
In case of each director in office at the date of the directers report 1s approved that

* 5o far as the director 18 aware, there 1S no relevant audit information of which the Group auditors are unaware, and

* the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any refevant
audit information and to establish that the Group auditors are aware of that information

Directors’ statement of responsibibity
The directors confirm that, to the best of therr knowledge

» the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and farr view of the assets
llabdities financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

« the Directors’ report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and
the undertakings ncluded In the consoldation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face

MW

By order of the Board

Anthony Llewellyn
Company Secretary

18 June 2013
Company Number 2920061



Corporate governance statement

Dear Shareholder

We understand that in order to fulfil our commitment te shareholders to create and delver shareholder value through the management of
the Group's businesses we must ensure high standards of corporate governance The Board and other members are held accountable for
ensurng that these principles are fulfilled There 1s a strong culture within the organisation for all employess to act with integnity and farrness
in everything that they do which 1s cemented in our core values As we are growing and operating in new territones the Board expects all
operations to be carned out In accordance with applicable laws and regulations The Board also expects {o be kept fully informed of any
associated complance nsks or Issues

The Company’s shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange, and therefore, under the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority
{the ‘FCA) required 1o report on compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the 'Code’} A copy of the Code can be found at
www fre org uk The Code was inmalty pubhshed in 2010 with a revised Code published in September 2012 and effective for companies
with a financial year commencing on or after 1 October 2012 The Board confirms that throughout the year ended 30 Apnl 2013 and as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has been in compliance with the Code, save for provision 8 1 1 regarding the independence of
lan Pearson and David Hurst-Brown, and a full explanation of this nen-compliance 1s provided on page 48

Under the new requirements of the Code coempanies are now reguired to disclose thar policy on diversity The Board demands that the
executives of the Company have an approprate balance of skills, expenence, independence, knowledge and diversity to enable them 1o
discharge their respective duties and responsibilities effectively The Board has noted the putlication of the Lord Davies’ report entitled
‘Women on Boards’ in February 2011 and will embrace its spint within the context that it will make any selections totally based upon
choosing the best person for the position to be filled respective of race colour, creed or gender We are strongly committed to continue to
make appointments on individual mernt but will value diversity in its broadest context

The Board and | will endeavour to continue to ensure the Groups success as an innovative, dynamic and weil governed business over the
coming year

(0S) St

Geoff Shingles
Chairman

18 June 20133

Role of the Board

The Board 1s accountable 1o shareholders for the proper conduct of the business and its long-term success It 1s ultimately responsible

for the activiies of the Group Including its overall direction, strategy, nsk management, governance and performance In order 1o mest

that responsibility it ensures that the necessary finangial and human resources are In place and that it 1s supported in its actvities by its
vanous Commitees Execulive Managemeni Board (EMB') and senior managers The authonty delegated by the Board 1o the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Commitiees o carry out certain tasks are defined in those Committees terms of reference Information on
the responsibilities of the Audit and Nemination Committees 1s set out in thew repcris on pages 52 and 54 The report of the Remuneration
Committee 1s set out on pages 59 to 65

The Board has a formal schedule of matiers reserved for its decisions which includes

L]

the Group's business strategy,

Group-wide business and financial reviews,

* major capital expenditure, acquisitions and disposals,

= review of the internal financial control and nsk management systems,
= the approval of intenm and annual inancial staterments and

* treasury management

L]
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Board composition

The Beard currently consists of eight members, the Charman, the GEQ, the GFO and five non-executive directors  Duning the year Andraw
Heath joined the Board as a non-executive director The Normination Committee followed a nigerous procedure which evaluated the skills
exparence and knowledge required of the new non-executive which led to the successful appeintment of Andrew Heath The process

Is descrbed In more detall In the Nomination Committee Report on page 54 All directers will stand for ra-glection at the AGM on 20
September 2013 Biographical details for each of the directors are set out on pages 38 o 39

Role of the Chairman

In accordance with the Code there is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEQ which have been set out in writing
and agreed by the Board The written roles are avalable to view on the Company’s website

Geoff Shingles has led the Board as Chairman since 1996 The Charman 1s responsible for the leadership of the Board and ensunng its
efectiveness on all aspects of its role He sets the agenda for the Beard and ensures that the Board receives accurate, timely and clear
infarmation giving sufficient tme to review all agenda items thoroughly including strategic Issues He promotes a culture of openness,
debate and faciitates constructive relations between executive and non-executive directors He 15 also responsible for ensunng that the
views of shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole In order for lim to effectively discharge his duties he works closely with
the Company Secretary The Charman s other professional commitments tisted on page 38 has not changed dunng the year and the Board
are satished that they continue not 1o Interfere with the performance of his duties for the Company

Role of the Chief Executive Officer

The Chiaf Executive, Sir Hossen Yassae, 1s the key dnver for proposing, developing and mplementing the Group's strategy and commercial
targets as agreed by the Board He 1s responsible for the day-to-day management of the business He carries out his duties in consultation
with the Chairman, the Board and EMB which in turn are responsible for the commercial and operational activities of the Group He

holds weskly mestings with the CFO and EMB to ensure the Group are actively managing the overall strategy of the business He s also
responsible, with the EMB team for impiementing the decisions of the Board and its Committess

Role of the Senior-Independent Director (‘SID’)

The SID acts as a scunding board for the Chairman and serves as an intermediary for the other dirgctors when necessary He also makes
himself available to shareholders if they have concerns which comtact through the normal channels of Chairman, CEO or CFO have faled
to resolve or for which such contact 1s nappropriate Dunng the year no requests from shareholders were receved The SID meets with the
non-executive directors annually without the Chairman present to appraise his performance Dawd Anderson took over this role from lan
Pearson during the financral year

Role of the Company Secretary

The Company Secretary under the direction of the Charman ensures good flow of infarmation within the Board and its Committess and to
senior managemant He 1s also respensible for adwvising the Board on all governance matters and s on hand to offer advice and services
should any director require 1 The Company Secretary attends all Board and ¢ertain Committee meetings The Board as a whole decides on
the appointment or remaval of the Company Secretary

Role of a Non-Executive Director

The non-executive directors have a wealth of expenence, business knowiedge and are appainted to constructively challenge senior
management and provide Input to meet agreed goals objectives and to ensure the integnty of financial Information The role 1s descnbed in
more detall within the FRC's Code

Dunng the year the Board considered the independence of each of the non-executive directors against the cntena speciiied In the Code
and took particular care to assess the independence of both lan Pearson and David Hurst-Brown lan and David were appointed as non-
executive directors of the Company in 1998 and 2000, respectively, and have therefore been connected with the Group for more than nine
years The Board acknowledged that they do not meet the ndependence cntena specified by the Code but agreed that both directors
continue to contribute significantly through ther ndividual skills and censiderable knowledge of both the Group and the industry The Board
agrees that the remaining non-executives rheet the independence cntena specified in the Cede



Induction and professional development

There 15 a formal induction procedura in place for all new appointments to the Board designed to enhance the directors’ knowledge of the
ndustry in general and ther understanding of the Group's operations/performance, and importantty the Group culture

The induction programme consists of the following

* one-to one meetings with the Charman, CEQ and CFO and meeting with the remaining Board members,
* meetings with EMB and senior managerment to discuss Group operations,

» attendance of strategy meetings, and

* visiting regional and international offices

In accordance with the Code the Chairman regularly reviews and discusses the developmeant needs with each director though each director
s fully aware that they should take responsibility for their own indvidual needs and take the necessary steps to ensure they are wholly
nformed

Activities of the Board

The Board holds regular scheduled meetings throughout the year which are supplemented by unscheduled ad hoc meetings Imegular
meetings are held when urgent business decisions are needed, such as, acquistion activity

Al gach meeting certan regular reporis are presented which are as follows

+ CEQ dslivers a full business update with focus on the semiconducter market, a business summary for each division, the Group's
relationships with current and potential partners, lcensing updates, units shipped, Pure, potential acquisitions and key business I1ssues
and actions

» CFO gies the year to date financial results latest financial projections, iInvestor and analysts forecasts and

» Company Secretary provides updates coverng governance, share prce data and sharehclder analysis

In addition, the Board meets penodically with senior management fram the Group's Technology and Pure dmvistons in order to review

the strategic direction of the business on an annual basis The main objectives are to assess and decide upon the key technologles/
products/markets for the business o exploit by assessing the potential returns against the risks The result is a common vision of the future
aspirations of the business and an understanding of the function and goals that each division has within the strategy  Dwvisional business
plans are built around executing the strategic plan The CEQ and CFO attend weekly and monthly mestngs of the EMB, where each
member provides an up to date operational report in which progress against plan 1s reviewed to ensure that this 18 in ing with the Group’s
strategic and business targets They will then prowide feedback to the Board at the next scheduled meeting on any areas of sigrificant
nterest

Activities during the year
During the year in addition to the above the Board

+ guided the successiul acquisiion of MIPS and was nvolved in reviewing and developing the strategy to integrate MIPS into the Group
The Board was also Involved in the acquisttions of Nethra Imaging and Paragon, while fully supperting the opening of a new Head Office
in Kings Langley, together with new regional offices in Australia, Indha and Foland,

¢ reviewed the existing rsk management processas within the operating businesses o document and report on significant areas of
business nsks and therr controls and that the process accords with the Turnbull guidance There 1S an on-going process for the effective
identification, evaluation and management of significant nsks faced by the Group  This process was In place throughout the year and as
at the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements Under this process the Board receves a detailed report outining
all the main nsks associated with both the Technology and Pure divisions, the report 1s reviewed thoroughly to consider if any necessary
action 1s required to address these nsks If the Board concludes that action 1s required 1t 1s given regular updates on progress and 1 also
made aware of any new nsks that are 1dentified throughout the year and

= reviewed and approved a comprehensive budget for the forthcoming year Expenditure is controfled aganst formal authonsation iimits
Major items of capital and revenue expenditure and all treasury matiers are reserved for members of the Board atone
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Board evaluation

The Board undertakes a formal evaluation of its performance and that of s committees each financial year The Board recognizes the
recommendations that an externally faciitated evaluation 1 performed every three years and will report back on this in due course

During the year an internal review was faciitated by the Company Secretary and led by the Charman The revew focused on a number

of key areas such as Board processes and ther effectiveness, Board composition, content of discussions and focus at Board meetings
succession planning, arranging institutional shareholder meetings and relations with shareholders Each director provided input and the
results concluded that the Board and its Committees continue to operate effectively but highiighted a number of areas that will need further
action and improvement which include

+ increasing dialogue with shareholders and institutional investors,
* more timely provision of Information in advance of both Board and Commitiee meetings, and
* Increased discussion required on the composition of the Board and Committees

The non-executive directors, led by the SID, also considered the performance of the Chairman withcut the Charrman present They
confirmed that the Charman’s leadership performance and overall contribution were of a hugh standard

Board and committee meeting attendance

Audit Remuneration Namination

Tenure {years) Board Comimnittea Committes Committee

Geoff Shingles 19 8/9 - 4/6° 2/2
Sir Hossein Yassae 18 9/9 - 1 2
Richard Srruth 2 4/9 5/5° 1" 2
Andrew Heath 1 7/9 - 5/6 1/2
Gilles Delfassy 1 7/9 - 3/6 1/2
David Anderson 2 9/9 5/5 5/6 2/2
Dawvid Hurst-Brown 12 8/9 5/5 6/6 2/2°
lan Pearson 15 8/9 &/5 6/6 272"

* Denotes attendance by a director, who 1s not a member of the Committee, at 2 Committee meeting, as requested by the Chairman of the
Commuittee

Relations with shareholders
The Group aciively encourages open and constructive dialogue with shareholders This 1s prnmarly achieved through

* reguiar meetings between institutional investors and the CEO/CFO to discuss business performance, and

* presentations to msttutional Investors/analysts by the CEO/CFO post release of the intenm and full year financial resulis The results are
made avalable on the Company website on the day they are announced and shareholders can register through the Company website
www imglec com to automatically receve these

The non-executive directors have access to independent feedback from shareholders after results presentations which, supported by
penodic attendance at analyst and shareholder presentations, prowides them with an understanding of the views of major shareholders The
Charman is available to meet with major shareholders 10 discuss governance and strategy if required and the SID 1s also avalable to listen
to therr views 10 ensure a clear understanding of concerns or issues

The investor relations department also manages an online forum which 1s geared towards private shareholders The forum allows private
shareholders to post any comments or concerns they have which are then circutated to management on a weekly basis 1 1s essential to
understand the views and opiruons of investors



Ancther key tool used to communicate to both nstitutional Investors and private investors 1s the Annual General Meeting (AGM) which 1s
held at the Group headquarters in Kings Langley Shareholders are given a minmum of 21 days’ notice of the meeting and are provided
with detalls of each substantially separate 1ssue which will be raised for voting at the meeting, the results of which will be made available
immediately after the mesting The key event of the day will be the full presentation to sharsholders made by the executives 10 explain
recent and future developments in the business followed by an open question and answer session The Board, EMB and senior engineers
will be avalable for discussion after the formal proceedings and shareholders wili also be invited to visit demenstration rooms displaying
technology n Group or partners' products with senior employees on hand to gwve in-depth detail of the Group's technologies and products

Conflicts of interest

All directors have a duty under the Companies Act 2006 to avoid a situation in which they have, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that
confliets, or possibly may conflict, with the nterasts cf the Graup  The Group has put in place procedures for the disclosure and review of
any conflicts or potential conflicts of interest which the directars may have and for the authenisation of such conflict matters by the Board

In deciding whether to authorize a conflict, or potential conflict, the directors have regard to ther general duties under the Companies Act
2006 The authorisation of any confict matter and the terms of authonsation, may be reviewed at any time and are reviewed formally by the
Group on an annual basis There have baen no conflicts of Interest in the year

51




52

Audit committee report

Dear Shareholder

am pleased 1o present the report of the Audit Commuttee for 2012/13 The Audit Committee 1s appointed by the Board and 15 established
to monitor the integnty of financial information and to provide assurance 1o the Board that the Company’s internal controls and risk
management systems are appropriate and regularly reviewed

The Committee continues to focus on ensuring that the Group’s systems and controls are operating effectively and are evolving :n ing with
the Group's growth

A fuller insight into the rele, activities and composition of the Audit Committee 1s provided below

I

Dawvid Anderson
Chairman of the Audit Commzttee

18 June 2013

Role of the audit committee
The main duties of the audit committee Include but are not imited to the foliowing

* monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group,

consider annually whether there s a need for an internal audit function,

review the Group s Internal financial contrels and nsk management systems,

make recommendations to the Board In relation to the external audiors regarding approval of ther remuneration, terms of engagement
appointment, re-appointment or removal,

review and monitor the external auditor independance and objectvty and the effectiveness of the audit process,

develop and implement policy on the engagement of the external audtor,

to report to the Board on how # has discharged s responsibilities

monitor the Group'’s whistlebiowing procedures to ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place for employees to be able to raise
confidential matters of possible impropriety, with suitable subsequent follow-up action

The full wntten terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be located on the Company s website www imgtec com

Committee composition
The audit committee comprises three non-executive directors

* Dawvid Anderson (Chairman)
* Dawvid Hurst-Brown
* lan Pearson

In accordance with Cade provision C 3 t the Board should satisfy iiself that at least one membaer of the Audt Committee has recent and
relevant financial experience The Board has considerad this requirement and, taking it account the financial background of both the
Chairman of the Committee Dawvid Anderson and also the former Charman, 1t 15 satisfied that 1his requirement has been met and that the
Committee has sufficient expenence to fulfii its obligations in an effective manner



Activities during the year

The Commuiiee have conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's sk management and internal control systems as part of the
annual risk review

In the financial year, the Commuttee fulfilled is duties under its terms of reference and discharged its responsibilities pnmartly by

* reviewing the Group's draft half-yearly and full year results prior to Board approval,

= focussing specifically on the accounting associated with the acquisition of MIPS Technologies, Inc,

* reviewing the draft Interrm Management Statements dunng the year,

* assessing the external auditor independence and cbjectivity,

s raviawing the external auditor plan for the audit of the Group's financial statements, which include key areas of scope of work terms of
engagement and fees,

s reviewing the Group s system to identfy and manage risk.

= reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal nsks over financial reporting

In addition under the Code the Committee 1s required to monstar and review the effectiveness of internal audit actmities The Group does not
have a separate nternal audit function and the Committee reviewed whether this was still suitable in the financial year They concluded that
the Group was sl suficiently small and that controls were suitably robust not 10 require a separate funchon and advised the Board of this
As the Group continues to grow the Committee will continue o review the requirements for its own internal audit function

Dunng the year Ernst & Young performed a review of the Group's PAYE compliance No major compiiance nsks were identified, but a
number of mincr changes have been implemented to further strengthen the PAYE compliance environment

External audit
KPMG were appointed as auditors in 1996

The Audit Commuttee 1s responsible for overseeing the Group's retations with the externat auditor During the year the Committee approved
the terms of engagement and remuneration to be paid to the external auditor and agreed tha scope and approach of the audit

To fulfil its responsibility regarding the iIndependence of the external auditor, the Audit Committee considered the auditor’s overall work
plan including the role of the senior statutory auditor and key audit staff and the overall exient of non-audit services  In order to assess
effectiveness the Commuiitee reviewed the arrangements to mamtain auditor independence and the auditor s fulfilment of the agreed audit
plan including the proposed resources 10 execute the plan were consistent with the scape of the audit engagement The Commitiee has
reviewed and 1s satisfied with the effectiveness and independence of the external auditor

The Group currently has a policy in place for the provision of non-audit services provided by the external auditor The policy highiights
the mportance of ndependence and okjectivity and states that non-audit services can only be provided where these are guaranteed In
the financial year the non-audit work carried out by KPMG was nominal and was solely the preparation of an accountants report to the
government body

In particular, to mantain the Indspandence of the auditor, the Committee appointed other third-pany accounting firms to conduct the due
diligence and valuation work relating to the acquisiion of MIPS Technologies, Inc

The Commuitiee has recommended to the Board that KPMG be proposed for re-appointment by shareholders as the Group's external
auditor at the forthcoming AGM The Audit Commuttee considers that the relationstup with the external auditor 1s working well and rernains
satisfied with ther :independence and effectiveness

Significant issues that the committee considered in relation to the financial statements

The Commitiee considered the key accounting jJudgements underlying the praparaticn of the financial staterments focussing specifically on
revenue recognition the level of stock provision, the valuation of intangible assets and goodwill assoctatad with the MIPS acguisition and
the valuation and accounting treatment of investments

These areas were discussed in detal with the auditors and the Commuttee was comfortable that an appropriate position had been taken
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Nomination committee report

Role of the nomination committee
The main duties of the Commitiee include tut are not imited to the following

* leads the process for Board appointments and makes recommendations to the Board

* considers succession planning at senior levels within the Group and ensures an appropriate balance of skills and experience,
* evaluates the balance of skills, expenence, independence and knowledge of the Board, and

* considers diversity 1Issues

The full wntten terms of reference of the nomination committee can be located on the Compary's website www imgtec com
Committee composition

The Nomunation Committee compnses four directors

* Geoff Shingles (Charman)

* Andrew Heath

Gilles Delfassy

* David Anderson

Activities during the year

Dunng the year 2012 the Commitiee’s particular area of focus was to slightly refresh the Board through the appointment of an additonal
non-executive director and also a new SID to replace lan Pearson lan still remains on the Beard as a ncn-executive director

The Committee were assisted in therr search for a non-executive director by Russell Reynolds and the preferred candidate was one with
a background 1n a leading technology Company with international business expenence The Committee considered a wide vanety of
ndividuals before proposing the appointment of Andrew Heath In making the appointment the Commitiee evaluated the particular skills,
knowledge, independence, experience and dversily, including gender that would benefit and balance the Board Also dunng the year,
Andrew Heath replaced lan Pearson as chairman of the Remuneration Committee

The Committae {excluding for this purpose David Anderson) determined that Dawid would be the mest appropniate SID to take over fram lan
Pearson and he did so durng the financial year

The Committee alsc reviewed a proposal for a Management and Leadership development programme for the executives and management,
and considered it to be an essential too! to support the Group’s strategy  More detall s prowided in the Corporate social responsibility report
an page 57

The Committee will continue throughout the year to assess the balance of the Board, succession planning and diversity issues

Cq Qwus

Geoff Shingles
Charrman of the Nomination Committee

18 June 2013




Corporate social responsibility report

The Group recognizes that it has responsibiities to all stakeholders which include the interests of employees and ther families, the need to
foster the Group’s business relationships with pariners, customers, suppliers and others, and the impact of the Group’s operations on the
local communities and the surrounding environment where d operates Employees are highly regarded and valued, and their employment
and other nghts are respected The Group i commutted 1o the important principle of equal opportunity which 1s reflected in the Group's
recrutment, graduate recruitment, discipinary and gnevance policies The Group is dedicated to supplying products of top guality to meet
its customers reguirements in a manner that 1s consistent with high environmental and ethical standards The Group makes a contribution
to local chanties and communitigs In areas where it operates its business

Energy use

As a Group we feel our environmental Impact on the whole is low, with our man business being the development of intelleciual property
which helps customers develop the most power efficient products possible Our emissions come mainly from the use of electricity In
our offices In the UK we currently have eight offices, four at Group headguarters in Kings Langley, one dala centre in the process of
construction and three offices at other locations in the UK We also have a number of overseas sites

The Group has been reviewing the supplies of its electncity and the tariffs and during the year two buildings have moved to a green
renewable energy tanff Further buiidings will move over to this tanff as current contracts expire The intentiory 1 that all electacity used is
from renewable tanffs by 2015

The Group are aware of our reporting cbligations from Qctaber 2013 under the Companias Act 2006 (Strategic and Directors’ Reports)
Regulations 2013 to report our annual greenhouse gas emissions m our annual report 2013/14 We understand the imporiance of these
new provisicns and are taking the necessary advice to comply

Redevelopment of site and environmental impact

The Group began redeveloping its headquarters site In Kings Langley, with the first of the four bulldings completed in Novernber 2012 The

second bulding 15 now N the process of construction as s a new data centre Al of the buildings are being designed along the principles of
sustainable design and will exceed the bulding regulaiions requirements far buitdings of this nature, the first build has achieved a BREEAM

raling of 'Excellent’ and the intention 1s that the remaining new buldings wilt 100

In addition to redueing each bulding's energy consumption a sustainable approach has been adopted when handiing other issues which will
contribute towards a truly sustainable bulding Such issues Include the selection of matenals, construction technologies, and the operation,
management and mamntenance of the completed bulding The man methods by which a fully sustainable bulding with the aspired BREEAM
rating of ‘Excellent’ will be achieved are

* Introducing the sustainable aspects of the construction process at an early stage of the design and cellaborating as a team to achieve the
sustainability geals

Considered and mteligent design of fenestration The main emphasis in the design and specification of the glazing and solar shading
devices will be to reduce operational energy usage In terms of haat loss and solar gain whilst maxirmang levels of daylight within the coffice
space ihus reducing rekance cn artificial ighting

« The provision of facilities such as secure bicycle storage and changing facilities to encourage staff to use sustanable modes of transport

Water saving technologies {such as flow restnctors, low flow rate water fittings, etc ) will be applied to the bulding to minmize portable
water demand and to achieve further CO, emissions reductions while saving a precious natural resource

Selection of construction matenals and technologies that minimize site wastage Using locally sourced matenals where pessible

« Responsibly sourcing matenals used n structural and non-structural elements Third-party certification will be reguired to show that the
timber has come from a sustainabiity managed source, 8 g Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)

* Using the Green Guide to Speciication to ensure that where possible matenals have 'A' rating

* Recycling construction waste using off-site sorting including a dedicated space for recyclable matenals on site
* The provision of dedicated recyclable waste storage faciities

* Aiming to improve the site’s ecological impact through considered landscaping treatment

* Incorporating SUDS (Sustainahle Urban Dranage) such as permeable paving on the surface car parks and water attenuation to control
surface water run-off and minimize water course pollution
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New data centre development
To meet the Group’s considerable IT requirements in the future a proposal 10 construct a dedicated data centre was approved

The energy efficient nature of the data centre was fundamental to the bnef provided by the Group to the contractors The new faclity once
constructed will contain two highly efficient data hatls the first of which will be avallable for use in July 2013 and the Group will start to
populate it from September 2013 The second hall will come onling in the future to meset business needs as the Group grows

The data halls are supported by a highly efficient electncal distribution system that utiizes state of the art static UPS systems that have
multiple modes of operation to maximize energy efficiency and minimize the energy used A low energy cooling solution 1s also being
adopted that provides both a water and air cooled solution that makes use of free cooling when ambient conditions allow

Pure division

Our Pure division has spent considerable time looking iInte ways to reduce therr environmental impact and it remains committed to ethical
and environmentally sustainable design and manufacturs as encapsulated within EcoPlus (www pure com/acoplus) Pure recognizes that its
main environmental impact comes through the products themselves N manufacture, transport and predominantly in use by consumers, and
s0 11 continues o reduce the power consumption of s products, with a programme in place 1o exceed the reguirements of the ughtened
Energy Using Products { EUP’) Directive which came into force in January 2013

The Pure division also ensures that through its own due diigence programme that all third-party factones comply with the following Health,
Environmental and Ethical requiremants

« EC Regulation on chemicals and theirr safe use (EC 1907/2008) known as Registration, Evaluation, Authonsation and Restriction of
Chemical substances {{REACH )

+ Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electnical Equipment Regulations 2005 (RoHS)

Battenes & Accumulators directives

* SEDEX or SA800 - Pure 1s committed to the ethical treatment of its staff and contractors, and to that end all third-party factones are
audied via the SEDEX or SABOO0 programmes to ensure comphance with local and national laws, particularly on working hours and
conditions, health and safety, rates of pay, terms of employment and minmum age of employment

European Union Timber Regulations ('EUTR') - ensures timber used on products comes from legally sourced forests and has full
tractabiity and evidence throughout the supply chain back to the originai forests

The Pure diision through ther own funchions ensures comphance with the following

+ The EC Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (‘WEEE') - this 1s aimed at minmizing the impact of electrical and
electronic goods on the envirionment

* REPIC - this 1s to meet obligations as a producer of WEEE

« the EC Drrective on Battenes and Accumuiators and Waste Battenes and Accumulators {2006/66/EC) through their membership of the
compliance scheme eBatt

The Pure division use a compliance soluticns company te meet therr obhigaticns under the Packaging Waste Regulation obligations

Recycling

We ancourage our employees to recycle therr day to day waste We do this by ensuring there are recyching bins for cardboard and non-
confidential materials and separate confidential bags i every office, all of which will be recycled There are also recycle bins in gach
kiichen area Energy saving measures are also in place for recycing components, such as printed circurt beards, toner cartridges, surplus
packaging and paper

Imagination House the head office at Kings Langley has an on-site canteen and we are working to ensure that as much waste as possible
1s recycled Al cardboard, wooden boxes, dnnk cans and plastic bottles are currently recycled The plan for the upcoming year 1s to have
separate bing n the canteen kichen for each type of waste allowing the composting of food waste and the recycling of tins and glasses



Our people

As stated in our Introduction we believe our most cntical asset s our people 10 2012/13 the Company recruited 482 people to support
the growth of our business of which 269 were graduates The Group have implemented a number of programmes to encourage the
development and retention which are detalled below

Development and training

A new three day Management and Leadership development programme was launched in the year With the rapid growth of the Group we
need to ensure we maintain a core culture that embraces our values and enables emplovees to perform at their best The programme will
focus on developing our managers so that they are able to provide the best management environment for therr teams The programme 1s an
interactive, experiential one where small groups of up to 12 employees get involved 1n leading teams, managing performance and providing
feedback and coaching to help each other develop The three day course since its inception has reached more than 50 managers with
pians in places to reach 110 by December 2013 Traning modules focussed on enhancing employees soft skills are also In the early stages
of being developed to commence in 2014

One to one meetings/annual reviews

There 1s an annual formal appraisal process in place for every employee The appraisal process 1s made up of two parts which include ling
managers providing comprehensive feedback on performance for the pnor year and secondly working with the employee to set objectives
for the future Employees are urged to provide Input when assessing performance and setting future objectives and are also encouraged
{0 raise any 1ssues or concerns they may have about any aspect of the jo This process 1s not the only opportunity for employees to give
nput, there 1s very much an open door culture throughout the Group where employees can discuss any Issues at any point

Graduate recruitment programme

The Group runs a graduate recruitment programme with universities and colleges throughout the UK, having developed strong relationships
with a number of unversities Including the University of Southampton, Impenal College London, the University of Bnstol and the University
of Manchester We sponscr PhD studentships, undergraduate and Masters of Science projects as well as running an active recruitment
calendar at our 1op universities As a direct result of our graduate recruitment programme we have had approximately 50 undergraduate
interns this year We have inked up with universities which reflect our technical skillset and are supporting and developing these into
centres of excellence for students in ine with cur intellectual property activities around the Group One of our key objectives is to encourage
acadernic institutions i the UK to support the research reguremenis of UK indusiry In addition to this we are also buiding collaborations
with other European universities cutside the UK

Scholarships, sponsorships and apprenticeships

The Group offers a wide range of other incentives o young people varying from the sponsorship of electrenic courses at local schoals,
gving scholarship awards to students at University to promote career opportunities at our Group and financial awards to successful
internships with the intention that the students come to work for the Group in the future The Group continues to run an apprenticeship
programme for 16 year olds and also mnvites around 20 young people annuaily for structured work expenence to learn more about and
experience some of the careers avalable in our sector The Group 1s i the process of building regional hubs at its four UK sites to promote
electronics to the school age population

Share awards

Share awards are regarded as a key retention too! and all employees regardless of location or seniorty participate in share arrangements
and receive awards bi-annually The Board considers that without the share plans it has adopted for employees, the Group would not have
achieved the greal success that it has achieved to date On joining every new employee at the Company gets a share plan presentation Al
of the Company s share plans are open 10 all employees, who do net need to have been at the Group for any materal qualifying penod of
fime to be able io paricipate Due to the widespread participation in the Company’s share plans, employees are now well educated in the
benents of share ownershig The Company also warks with external advisors to devise plans that not only offer the best arrangement for
employees but alsc have performance conditions that align the interests of employeses with shareholders

The Company was recognized for its efforts by fs ProShare in 2012 as joint winners in the category of ‘Best overall performance in fostenng
employee share ownership for companies with 1,001-15,000 employees This was a significant achievement given the relatvely small size
of the Group with approximately 1,200 employees at the time in relation to much larger competitors In the same year the Company also
received a commendation from The Employee Share Ownership Centre (‘ESOP') which applauded the granting of share awards on a Group
wide basis and the strong and competitive share plan culture within the Group
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Health and fithess

it1s becoming increasingly important for the Group to ensure It 1S doing what it can to assist staff to stay fit and healthy The Company
encowages employees to do this by paying 50% of gym membershup Currently 17% of employees are members of fitness clubs supported
by the Company

Also in place 1s a Ride2Work scheme which was launched in 2010 where the Company works in paninership with a national cycle retailer
1o promote sustanable transport and the health of its employees The scheme aflows the Company 1o cffer bicycle and related safety
equipment to employees to be used 1o commute to work up 1o a maximum spend of £2,000 with a 12 month repayment penod There are
consderable tax savings for the employee as well as healih benefts Currently 19% of employees parhicipate in the scheme

Healthier staff restaurant

Qur new headquanters provides supenor catenng faciiies and the comments from employees have been overwhelmingly positive with
paople enthusiastic about the gualty, freshness and vanety of produce The catening firm operating the canteen also ensures they use only
sustanable fish and farm assured meats as standard which 1 1n Iine wath Group principles Our aim in the upcoming year is 1o ensure guality
and the innovation of the canteen team 13 maintained and further mproves

Local community and environmental sustainability

As part of its commitments to the local community and envircnment the Company 1s engaging a local community charity to help turn
multiple areas of Group owned grean spaces that have been left derelict and overgrown Into a maintained landscaped area The focus
initizily will be on overgrown woodland set behind our office in Chepstow The aim 1s to create an attractive area for employees to enjoy
along with associated habritat improvements

Charitable work in the community

The Group gives charntable donations both locally and nationally Every year employees are consulted to ensure that the donations given by
the Group represent alf the Interests and locations where employees are based A list of charties are selected by the Group and employees
are then asked to vote on which percentage of the Group chartable donation pot 1s 10 go to each of the charies  If employees raise money
for & chanty on the Group selected chanty list the Group will double the amount of money raised by the employee

Sports and social club

This was set up in 2000 with the aim of brnging together employees to participate n a vanety of actvities  Employees for a nominal

£2 monthly comnbution can gan membership which provides a 50% discount on all events The club 1s seeing considerable growth in
populanty with membership nising 10 83% of employees The Sports and Social Club Commitiee has also grown to 12 active members
responsibole for organising events In the financial year there has bean a wide range of events, such as visits to the opera Ascot family days,
cross-country running events marathons, mountain biking, combat boxing and rock cimbing activities to name but a few!




Directors’ remuneration report

Dear Shareholder

This 1s my first Remuneration Report since | took over the Charr of the Company's Remuneration Cornmittee (‘Commuttee’) | would firstly
Iike to thank lan Pearson for his efforis of Chainng the Commuttee over the past decade | take over this role at a time of considerable
growth within the Group In the past year and when tha spothght 1S on executive remuneration in the press We are about to see the
landscape change with new regulations and legislation which 13 likely 1o impact most FTSE companies in cne way or another in 2013 and
beyond As a respansible Commitiee we will review and consider with care any new provisions whether they come from the Department for
Business Innovation and Skills ('BIS") UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code ), the Listing Rules, the ABI or any cther relevant bedy

Our remuneration system for executive directors has always been ted closely to the progress, profitability, growth and performance of the
Group and this will continue  The principles we apply have led to appropnate vanances in the remuneration of our executive directors’ in the
past five years These vaniances have clearly reflected the underlying performance of the Group

Dunng the past year the Committee has carned out a comprehensive review of executive remuneration packages and has developed a new
strategy for the future which will be both competiive and farr In rewarding achievement, while always refiecting the interests of shareholders
We will be providing shareholders and relevant bodies with precise detals of these changes before the AGM where we will be seeking
support and approval of the proposed revisions to 1he structure of executive remuneration Prior to the AGM the Committea will be making
every effort to consult and enhance dialogue with shareholders in relation 1o the proposed changes Meetings are scheduled to take place
n June and July 2013 with both the Fund Managers and Corporate Governance Managers at institutional shareholders We wilt also be
halding conference calls and responding In weling to any related items raised by sharehclders The Committes respects the views of
shareholders and wants to encourage engagement with investors

In the commentary we show how the existing annual bonus and share plans aligned to the performance achigved in the past financial year
and shareholder value generated over the penod from June 2010 to June 2013

The work of the committee during 2012/13

In May 2012, the Committee endorsed the out-turn for the annual bonus for the 2011/12 financial year and agreed the measurement
parameters for the 2012/13 annual bonus

in June 2012 the Committee agreed the CEQ and CFO would receive annual share awards and they will be made around the same ime as
ihe grant te all employees In December 2012 The CEO recewved 40,656 shares and CFO receved 20,726 shares, the value of the shares
awarded equalled 40% of basic salary

In May 2013, the Committee considered the potentiai outcome for the 2012/13 annua! bonus, and the smployee bonus scheme for the
Exscutive Management Board (‘EMB’)

Through the year the Committee also reviewed all elements of the remuneration structure of exscutive drectors, comgnsing salary car
allowance, pension annual bonus and long term incentives as part of the strategy review mentioned above The structure of other relevant
FTSE 250 companies’ annual bonus and long-term incentive plans were benchrnarked Externai advice was sought from Olswang, Towers
Watson and JLT

Annual bonus cutcome

One of the key principles of our annual bonus pelicy 15 that it s self-funding Annual bonuses are only paid to executives f the Group
performs in ine with the plan agreed by the Committee Durng the 2012713 financial year the Group did riot deliver the resulls in ine with
the ptan and consequently ng cash bonus was payable

Executive share plan outcome

The first tranche of the 750 000 shares of the CEQ's share award of 2,250 000 granted in Decernber 2009 met the performance condiions
and became available 10 him in December 2012, the shares have noi been exercised

Both the Chairman and CEQ's SAYE 2009 share options vested in December 2012 and they retained the shares

At the AGM in 2006 shareholders approved a resolution giving authorty to the Company to 1ssue 15% of is 1ssuad share capital over 10
years, equating to 1 5% per annum Dunng 2012/13 the Company granted 4 000,000 shares (t 5% of the issued share capital) and of this
sum executives receved 62,891 shares {0 0155% of the 1 5%)
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Executive salaries

Executive salary increases in the financial year 2012/13 averaged 8 3% compared with the average salary increase for all other employees
of 4 5% The pnmary reason for the difference in salary increase for executives compared with all other employees, was to bnng the
executive salanes mare into ine with a competitive market-based salary, appropnate for the size and growth in the Group In recent years

Proposed executive remuneration structure

Following the comprehensive review of the remuneration of executives, it 1§ proposed that the remuneration be structured around threg
elemants going forward a market competitive base salary, an annual bonus aligned to the delivery of In-year performance and long-term
value dnivers, and a long-term incentive plan [LTIP) algned with the long-term success of the Group Once the Group has consulted with
instiutional shareholders, ABI and ISS the details of the proposed revisions to the annual bonus scheme and long-term incentive plan will
be communicated to shareholders before the AGM

Remuneration and opportunities for our employees

The Committee reviewed the pay and conditions of all employess within the Group when determining executive remuneration in the financial
year The Group ams to provide a competitive salary to employees 1o ensure it attracts the nght calibre of people and all salares are
reviewed annually while graduates are reviewed biannually

In order to encourage share ownership at all levels, Including executive directors, the Company makes share awards to all employees and
offers a Save As You Earn ('SAYE') scheme The Company's shares are made to employees under the Employee Share Plan {‘ESP') on a
-annuat basis and will make awards to employees that are more tax efficient, where possible The shares under the ESP vest on the third
anniversary of the grant date subject to any performance conditions The SAYE allows eligible employees an opperiunity to enter into a
three year savings contract to save a portion of therr satary which can be used to purchase Company shares at up 1o a 20% discount to the
market price on the date of invitation Over 60% of employees paricipate n the SAYE For further opportunities please refer to pages 57 to
58 of the Corporate Social Responsibility Report

In summary

We trust this report 1s informative We support the clear message sent by BIS that “Generous rewards for leading executives are not an
1Issue where executive remuneration 18 well structured, clearly linked 1o the strategic objectives of a Company, and which rewards executives
that contribute to the long-term success of that Company " The Committee are confident that our new proposed strategy for executive
remuneration wiil prowide the necessary structure and appropnate reward for executives, and is directly aligned for the future growth and
profitability of the Group

Andrédw Heath
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

18 June 2013

Remuneration committee

The Committee adwises and makes recommendations to the Board on an appropnate remuneration policy and conducts an annual
remuneration review within the agreed terms of reference of the Committee which are avaable on the Groups website at www imgtec com
The Committee consists exclusively of non-executive directors Dunng the year the members of the Committee have been Andrew Heath
Dawid Anderson, David Hurst-Brown, Gilles Delfassy and lan Pearson The Chawr of the Committee transittoned from lan Pearson to Andrew
Heath dunng the year

The different internattonal expenance and level of ndependence of the Committee provides the appropnaie balance in regard 1o executive
rernuneration of the Company The Board considers all Commuttee members to be independent except for lan Pearson and Dawvid Hurst-
Brown as reported on page 48 of the Corporate Governance Statement and considers all to have no personal inanc:al interest




Dunng the year the Committee has receved external adwice from Olswang, Towers Watson and the Group's Independent Financial Advisor,
JLT, who advised on pension matters Towers Watson furrushed the Commutiee with data of executive packages of other FTSE 250
companies The Company Secretary advises the Committee and attends all Commitiee meetings

The Commitiee has met five times during the year and details of who attended are detailed on page 50 The key discussions and tasks at
the meetings are listed below

+ salary review for executive directors

= car allowance

* pension pohcy

* annual bonus - short-term reward

* share schemes - long-term incentive plan

The Committee held discussions with the Board in relation to the Board s annual report to shareholders on the Group’s policy on the
remuneration of executive directors and in particular the Directors’ Remuneration Repert, as required by the Companies Act 2008, the Code
and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty

No Board member 15 nvoived in deciding his awn remuneration package

Remuneration policy

The Committee has gven full consideration to the Principles of Good Governance as set out in the Code with reference to directors’
remuneration The main objectives of the policy are to ensure that pay and benefits packages are sufficently competitive 10 attract, develop
and retain high calibre executives

In determining directors' remuneration for the year the Committee took into consideration the pay and conditions of employees of the
Group For all other senior staff directly reporting to the CEQ, for example, the EMB, the CEQ will brief the Committee annually regarding the
overall value {all components) and structure of ramuneration for the year and any rewisions  This aftows the Commitiee to provide advice to
the CEQ in this respect, with the intent of ensunng an effective and competitive framework on which such individual remuneration 1s to be
determined

Directors’ remuneration
The main elements of the executive directors' remuneration currently are

Basic salary

To review and determine the specific levels of basic salary, the Committee draws on a wids range of relevant data market conditions, as
wel as Group and individual performance

Pension
There are no special arrangements in place for executives The maximurn Company contnbution 1s 7 5% of base salary on the basis of a
4 5% coninbution by the executive The Company offers a salary sacnfice pension scheme to all employees

Share incentives
The Commiitee aims to ensure that executives and senior employees are farly rewarded for ther contributon to the success of the Group
The Group currently operates an ESP and SAYE, both of which were approved by shareholders at the AGM in 2006

Annual bonus

The Group has an annual cash bonus plan All executive directors are eligible to receve 100% of salary Measures and targets were set at
the start of the year relating to the achievernent of budgeted profit
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Executive directors’ service contracts

The exscutive directors have on-going service contracts with no specified end date There are no specific compensation entilement
prowisions n the contracts In the evant of termination in respect to share awards, all awards weuld be treated in accordance with the rules
of the relevant plans

The table below provides further detall

Contract Data Notice Penod
Geoff Shingles 3103 1998 & menths' notice by enher director or Company
Sir Hossein Yassale 3108 1998 6 months' notice by ether director or Company
Richard Smith 03052011 & months' notice by ether director or Company

Executive directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the executive directors for the 2012/13 financial yvear 1s set out in the table below

Aggregate Aggregate

Benefits in emoluments for emaciuments for

Salary Bonus' Pansion kind? 201213 201112

£'000 £:000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £ 000

Geoff Shingles 90 - - 2 92 e
Sir Hossein Yassae 413 165 51 1 630 546
Richard Smith 212 85 24 1 322 210
715 250 75 4 1,044 848

{1} Cash bonus awarded relates to the financial vear ending 30 Apnl 2012 as explained on page 58

(2) Benefits in kind 15 private medical insurance

Non-executive directors

Nean-executive directors are appeinied under letters of engagement Appointments have historically been for an inihial penod of three years
with a review undertaken at the end of this period In accordance with best practice non-executive directors may continue to serve subject
to the Board's discretion and annual re-election by shareholders at each AGM of the Company

The fees for the non-exacutive directors are reviewed by the Board The structure of remuneration 1s set by reference to the market practice
and was last reviewed duning the financial year The non-executive directors are not eligitde for performance related bonuses or share
awards and no pension contributions are made on their behalf

The remuneration of the non-executive directors for the 201 2/13 financial year 1s set out In the table below

Aggregate emoluments for Aggregaie emoluments for
Salary 2012/13 2011412
£°000 £000 £ 000
Andrew Heath 29 29
Gilles Deifassy 35 35
Dawvid Anderson 43 43 44
lan Pearson 43 43 a4
Dawvid Hurst-Brown 38 38 39
188 188 127

62




Directors’ interests in share incentives

Employee share plan (‘ESP')
The ESP s the prmary long-term incentive plan that is offered 10 all employees For executives the incentive plan s subject 1o performance
conditions

Share price Granted Exercised Lapsed
Date of on grant At start of during duning during At end of
grant [{:1} year year year yaar year Vesting date Lapse date
Geoff Shingles 03/10/2G11 4253 131,250 - - - 131,250 03/10/20t11  03/10/2016
Sir Hossein Yassaie 22/12/2009 2275 2,280,000 - - - 2,250,000 22/12/2012 22/12/2019
Richard Smith 06/10/2011¢ 428 1 50,000 - - - 50,000 08/10/2014 06/10/2019

(1) Subject to performance conditioris the award will vest in three equal tranches of 750,000 shares commencing on 22 December 2012,
the second tranche will then vest on 22 December 2013 with the remaining tranche vesting on the 22 December 2014 The performance
condiion 1s related to the annual cumulative growth In the Group's share price over the third, fourth and fifth year from the date of grant
If the annual cumulative growth of the Group's share price (s less than 7 5% no part of the award will vest, if the annual cumulative
growth of the Group s share price 1s more than 7 5% and tess than 15% the performance target will be satisfied pro-rata on a straight
ine basis and if the annual cumulative growth of the Group's share price 1s 15% or more ali 100% will vest

(2) Vasting of the share awards 15 based 100% on the percentage growth in the pnice of a share in the Company compared to the
percentage growth of the FTSE techMARK All-Share index (the 'Index’) over the 3 year peniod commencing on the date of grant The
Company share pnce must exceed the Index by over 125% for the award to vest 50% of the award will vest if the Company share price
exceeds 125% of the index, between 125% and 150% the award will be vest on straight kne basis 100% of the award will vest for the
achiegvement of 150% of the iIndex The pnce of a share in the Company for these purposes will be the average mid-market ¢losing pnce
as denved from the Official List of the London Stock Exchange for each business day in the perod of three months preceding the grant
date and the third annversary of the grant date The value of the index will be the average value of the Indax for each business day in the
three months preceding the grant date and the third anniversary of the grant date as appropnate

The highest and lowest share prices in the year are set out on page 65

Tax efficient employee share plan (TEESP?)

Share awards with joint ownership between the executives and a heneficial Interest held with the Company Employee Benefit Trust were
granted on 22 January 2013 The number of share awards and beneficial :interest 1s determined by tha share price on exercise

Share price Granted Exercised Lapsed
Date of on grant At start of during during during At and of
grant {p) year year yaar year yaar? Vasting date Lapse date
S Hossein Yassale 22/01/2013! 461 30 - 40656 - - 40656 22/01/2016 22/01/2023
Richard Smith 22/01/2013" 461 30 - 20725 - - 20,725 22/01/2016 22/01/2023

(1) Vesting of the share awards 1s based 100% on the percentage growth in the price of a share in the Company compared 1o the
percentage growth of the FTSE techMARK All-Share Index {the Index’) over the 3 year penod commencing on the date of grant The
Company share price must exceed the index by over 125% for the award to vest 50% of the award wil vest If the Company share price
exceeds 125% of the ndex, between 125% and 150% the award will be vest on straight Iing basis 100% of the award will vest for the
achievement of 150% of the index The pnce of a share in the Company for these purposes will be the average mid-market closing pnce
as derved from the Official List of the London Stock Exchange for each business day in the period of three months preceding the grant
date and the third anniversary of the grant date The value of the index will be the average value of the Index for each business day in the
three months preceding the grant date and the third anniversary of the grant date as appropnate

{2) The highest and lowest share prices in the year are set out on page 65
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Company share price performance vs FTSE techMARK All-Share Index
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In the analysis the FTSE techMARK All-Share Index has been chosen to compare the performance of the Company's share price agamnst an
index of comparable companies

Save as you earn ('SAYE’)
Shares granted tc executives under the SAYE scheme are shown in the table below

Share price Granted Exercised Lapsed

Date of on grant At start of year during during during Atend of year
grant P} year year year Vesting date Lapse date
Geoff Shingles 30/10/2009 139 2,298 - 2,298° - - 01A12/2012 01/06/2013
25/10/2010 3052 485 - - - 495  01/12/2013  01/06/2014
15/11/2011 366 2 1,179 - - - 1179 01/12/2014  01/06/2015
12/11/2012 3812 - 755 - - 755 01/12/2015 01/06/2016

3,972 755 2,298 - 2,429
Sir Hossein Yassale 30/10/2009 139 2,298 - 2298° - - Q1A12/2012  01/06/2013
25/10/2010 3052 495 - - - 495 01/12/2013  01/06/2014
15/11/2011 3662 1,179 - - - 1,17¢  01/12/2014  01/06/2015
12/11/2012 3812 - 755 - - 755  01/12/2015  01/06/2016

3,972 755 2,298 - 2,429
Richard Smmuth 15/11/2011 366 2 2,457 - - - 2457 0D1/12/2014 01/06/2015

2,457 - - - 2,457



{1) The option price per share was caiculated by reference 1o the adjusted closing mid-market price of the Groups shares on the three

dealng days immediately before the date of grant

{2) On the 10 December 2012 Geoff Shingles exercised an oplion over 2,298 shares granted to him on 30 October 2008 at 138 pence The
closing market pnce of the shares on this date was 429 pence resulting In a gain of £6,664 (2012 8 115 shares and £33,629 gan) He

retained the 2 298 shares

{3) On the 15 Apnl 2013 Sir Hossein Yassae exarcised a share option over 2,298 shares granted to him on 30 October 2008 at 139 pence
The closing market price of the shares on this date was 440 pence resulting in & gain of £6 916 (2012 8,115 shares and £51,522 gain)

He retaned the 2,298 shares

Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the directors In the ordinary shares of Imagination Technologies Group plc (in addition 1o interests in share options

and awards) are shown below

Ordinary shares as at

Orchinary shares as at

30 April 2013 30 Apnl 2012
Geolf Shingles 104,084 116,133
Sir Hossen Yassaie 816,245 813,947
Richarg Smith 1,113 1,118
Androw Heath - -
Gilles Delfassy - -
David Anderson 6,675 5,675
lan Pearson 31,622 31,622
Davtd Hurst-Brown 50,000 50,000

There have been no further changes n the above interests between 30 Apnl 2013 and 18 June 2013

Share price

The market value of Imagination Technologies Group plc shares on 30 Apnl 2013 was 425 40p The highest and lowest market share price

of an ordinary share in the year was 661 50p and 383 50p respectively

65



66

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Imagination Technologies Group plc

We have audited the financial statements of Imagination Technologies Group plc for the year ended 30 Apnl 2013 sel out on pages 67 to 108
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group finangial statemerits is apphcable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
parent Company financial statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compares Act 2006 Cur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to themin an
auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinicns we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully In the Directors’ Statement of Responsibility set out on pages 45-46, the diractors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Qur responsibility I1s to audit and express an opinton on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to

comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A dascrption of the scope of an audit of financial statemeants 1s provided on the Financial Reporting Council s website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukpnvate

Opinion on financial statements

In our cpinion

« the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Company's affars as at 30 Apnil 2013 and of the
Group s proiit for the year then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

» the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

« the financial statements have been prepared in accardance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opimon on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

tn our opinicn

* the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compares Act 2006,
and

* the nformaticn given 1n the Directors’ Repart for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in raspect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if in our opinion

* adequale accounting records have not been kept by the parent Cormpany, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from

hranches not wsited by us, or

the parent Campany financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are not In agreemert with the

accounting records and returns or

* certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not receved all the informaticn and explanations we requirs for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

= tha Directors’ Statement, set out on page 45, in relation to going concern,

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 47 10 51 relating to the Cornpany’s compliance with the nine prowisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our revew, and certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors’ remuneration

[

Tudor Aw (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Ple, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square, London E14 5GL

18 June 2013




Consolidated income statement

Year to Year to
30 Apnl 2013 30 Apnl 2012
Notes £'000 £000
Revenue 1,2 151,467 127.499
Cost of sales {20,8186) (21,014)
Gross profit 130,651 106,485
Research and develocpment expenses (83,956} (59,833)
Sales and administralive expenses (28,750} (23,171)
Gain on investments 1,763 822
Impairment of nvestments (5,679) (145)
Acquistion related costs {2,744) -
Contingent acquistion consideration release - 4 009
Total operating expenses {118,366) (78,118)
Operating profit 3 11,285 28,367
Financial ncome 1,195 292
Financial expenses (320} {115)
Net financing inceme 875 177
Profit before tax 12,160 28,544
Taxation charge 5 (5,884) {8,083)
Profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of 6,276 20,461
the parent
Restated
{note B)
Earnings per share Basic 6 24p 80p
Diluted 23p 7 8p

During this year and the previous period all resulis anseg from continuing operations

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year to Year 10
30 April 2013 30 Aprl 2012
Notas €000 £ 000
Profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of 6,276 20,481
the parent
Other comprehensive Income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign opéaratons {797) 57)
Change n fair value of assets classified as avalable for sale 9 - 866
Total other comprehensive income for the financial year, net (797) 809
of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the financial year attributable 5,479 21,270

to equity holders of the parent
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Consolidated statement of financial position

At 30 Apnl At 30 Aprit
M3 2012
Notes £'000 £ 000
Non-current assets
Other intangible assets 7 59,615 11,471
Geodwill 7 54,981 31,853
Propeny, plant and equipment 8 45,873 25,033
Investments 9 18,711 12,885
Deferred tax 5 10,446 18,829
189,626 9% 671
Current assets
Inventones 10 8,512 5,417
Trade and other recevables 11 64,018 41 068
Cash and cash equivalents 12 76,572 86 262
149,102 112,747
Total assets 338,728 212718
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 13 (35,575) {26,378)
Interest beanng loans and borrowings 14 (4,643) (498)
Corporation tax payable 5 (56,279} -
(96,497) (26.874)
Nen-current habilities
Other payables 15 (5,289) -
Interest beanng lcans and borrowings 14 (26,309) (5031)
Deferred tax lability 5 (19,241} (3 428)
{50,839) (8,457}
Total habilities (147,336) (35,331)
Net assets 191,392 177,387
Equity
Called up share capial 16 26,51 26,425
Share premum account 16 99,236 98,348
Other capital reserve 16 1,423 1,423
Merger reserve 16 2,402 2,402
Revaluation reserve 16 586 586
Translation reserve 16 {621) 176
Retained earnings 61,795 48 027
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 191,392 177,387

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directers on 18 June 2013 and were signed on is behalf by

OQ wpolel

G S Shingles
Director




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Share Other Merger Ravaluation  Transtation Retainad
capital premium capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £7000
At 1 May 2011 25,815 97,300 1423 2,402 {280) 233 16,177 143070
Profit for the year - - - - - - 20,461 20,461
Qther comprehensive income for the year
h

Exchange differences on translation of B _ _ _ _ (57) _ (57)
foreign operations
Change in far value of assets B _ - _ 866 - _ 866
classified as avalable for sale
Total other comprehensive iIncome for - - - - 866 (57) - 809
the year
Transactions with owners
Share based renumeration - - - - - - 10245 10,245
Tax credtt in respect of share-based - - - - - - 1,562 1,562
incentives
Issue of shares at nil cost 418 - - - - - 418) -
Issue of new shares 192 1,048 - - - - - 1240
At 30 Apni 2012 26,425 £8,348 1,423 2,402 586 178 48,027 177,387
At 1 May 2012 26,425 98,348 1,423 2,402 586 176 48,027 177,387
Profit for the year - - - - - - 6,276 6,276
Other comprehensive income for the year
Exchange differences on translation of _ _ _ _ _ 797 - (797)
foreign operations
Change In farr value of assels _ _ _ - - - - -
classified ag avatlable for sale
Totai cther comprehensive income for - - - - {797) - (797)
the year
Transactions with owners
Share based renumeration - - - - - - 11,316 11,316
Tax credit in respect of share-based - - - - - - (3,793)  (3,793)
incentves
Issue of shares at nil cost 1] - - - - - {(31) -
Issue of new shares 115 888 - - - - - 1,003
At 30 Aprnil 2013 26,571 99,236 1,423 2,402 588 {621) 61,795 191,392
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year io Year 1o
30 Apnl 2013 30 Apni 2012
Notes £'000 £000
Cash flows from operating actinities
Profit after tax 6,276 20,461
Tax charge 5,804 8,083
Profit before tax 12,160 28 544
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization 3 8,374 5 807
Loss on disposal of ixed assets 292 -
Net financing income (875) (177)
Share-based remuneration 4 11,316 10,315
Gain on investments e] (1,7683) 822)
Impairment of (nvestments 9 5,679 145
Contingent acquisition consideration release - (4,008)
Exchange difference 3 {1,146} (219)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 34,037 39,584
Change in working capital, net of effects from acqusition of subsidianes
{Increase} / decrease in inventores {2,598) 788
Increase in recewvables {11,708) {13.319)
{Decrease) / increase in payables (22,263) 2,019
Cash generated by operattons (2,532) 26,072
Interest pard {103} {115)
Taxes pad {1,205) {1 224)
Net cash flows from operating activibies (3,840) 27 733
Cash flows from investing activities
Investments made in the year 9 (7,399) (2,763)
Proceeds from dispesal of investments 9 795 -
Interest receved 226 288
Acguisition of intangible assets (1,128) (780)
Acguisition of property, plant and equipment (22,901} (8.852)
Acquisition of subsidianes - MIPS 18,470 -
Acquisition of subsidiares - other {1,849} -
Net cash used In investing activities (13,786} (12,107}
Cash flows from financing actimties
Proceeds from the tssue of share capital 16 1,003 1,240
Draw down of loan 14 30,952 -
Repayment of borrowings 14 (5,527) (B0)
Net cash from financing activities 26,428 1,180
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 8,802 16,808
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation 1,508 82
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the period 66,262 49,374
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod 12 76,572 66,262




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Accounting policies

General
Imagination Technologles Group gl 1s a company incorperated in the UK The Group financial staternents consolidate those of the
Company and its subsicianes (together referred to as the Group)

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements have bean prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRSs) The Group has elected to prepare its parent Company financial statements in
accordance with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 104 to 107

Basis of preparation
The accounting palicies set out below have been applied consistently to all penods presented in these consolidated financial statements

There were no new standards and amendments to standards as adopted by the European Union at 30 April 2012, mandatory for the first
time for the financial year beginning 1 May 2012, that had an impact on the Group

Judgements made by the directors in the application of these accounting policies that have signficant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a sigrificant nsk of matenal adjustment in the next year are discussed below under ‘Significant accounting judgements and
estimates’

Measurement convention
The financiat statements are prepared on the histonical cost basis except that the investments have been stated at farr value In accordance
with JAS 39

Going concern

After making enguines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue n operaticnal

existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and |
financral statements i

The Groug has adequate financial resources together with long term contracts with a number ¢f customers and suppliers across a range
of consumer markst segments and geographic areas As a conseguence the directors believe that the Group 1s well placed to manags its
busness risks successfully despite the current uncertain econcmic outlook

Furiher information regarding the Group's business activities, together with the factors ikely to affect its future development, performance
and posihion is set oul in the Chief Executive’s review on pages 3 to 11

Further information regarding the financial position of the Group, 1ts cash flows, kquidity position and borrewing faciliies are descnbed in
noles 12, 14 and 19

In addition, note 18 to the financial statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital its financial
nsk management objectives, details of its financial nstruments and hedging actwviiies, and ds exposures to credit nsk and liquidity nsk

Basis of consolidation - subsicharies

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Group Cantrol exists when the Group has the power, drectly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as fo obtain benefits from its actvities In assessing control, potential voting nghts that
presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account The financial statements of subsidianes are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control cormmences until the date that controf ceases

Business combinations
The Greup has applied IFRS 3 Business Combinations {revised 2008} in accounting for business combinations

Busingss combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method at the acguisition date, which 1s the date on which control 1s
transferred to the Group Control 1s the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity sc as to obtain benefit from
its activibes In assessing control, the Group takes inlo consideration potential voting nghits that currently are exercisable The financial
staterments of subsidianies are Included N the consolidated financial statements from the date that control passes

The Group measures gooawill as the fair value of the consideration paid or payable less the net fair valus of the dentifiable assets, labilities
assumed and contingent habiliies acquired, all measured as of the acquisition date
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The consideraticn transferred does not include amounts related 1o the setiiement of pre-existing relatonships Such amounts are generally
recognized In the income statement Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of equity securities, that the
Group incurs In connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred

See note 24 for the application of the policy to the business combinations that occurred during the pernod

Any contingent consideration payable 1s recognized at far value at the acquisition date i the contingent consideration 1s classified as
equity, it 1s not remeasured and settlement 1s accounted for within equity Otherwise, subsequent changes to the far value of the contingent
consideration are recegnized in the Income statement

Revenue

Revenue compnses of 1he value of consideration receved for sales of heenses to the Group s technology, royaluies ansing from the resuiting
sale of lcensees’ products embeddad with the Group's technology, development income, support, mamntenance, traimng, and the sale of
goods

The Group foliows the principies of IAS T8 Revernue recogmition Revenue associated with the sales of goods 1s recognized when all of the
following condtions are satisfiad

* The Group has transferred the significant nsks and rewards of cwnership to the buyer,

* The Group retans nesther continuing managenal mvolvernent to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold,

= The amount of revenue can be measured relably,

¢ It1s probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow into the Group, and

* The costs incurred and or to be incurred can be measured rehably

Revenue associated with the provision of services Is recognized when all of the following conditions are satishied
* The amount of revenue can be measured rehably,

* 115 probable that the economic benefits associated wath the transaction will flow into the Group,

+ The stage of completion of the transaction as at the end of the reporting penod can be measured reliably, and
* The costs ncurred, or to be incurred for the transaction can be measured reliably

Therefore, revenue from standard licenses 1s recognized on dalivery to the customer, which 1s when stis considered the above conditions
are met Revenue on licence agreements for products which are either not fimished or which need to be modified to meet specific customer
requuements Is recognized on a percentage-of-completion basts over the period from stanting development of the product to delivery

The percentage-of-completion s measured by monnoring progress compared with the total estmated project requirement  Progress ts
measured by an assessment of performance aganst key development milestones

Revenue associated with nghts 1n license agreements to unspecified current and future products s recogrized under a subscription
accounting basis, on a straight-ine bas:s cver the term of the arrangement

Revenue on development work I1s recognized on a percantage-of-completion basis over the penod from the start of the development to
delvery Development work 1s normally invoiced as milestones are achieved

Where invoicing milestones on licence or development arrangements are such that the proportion of work performed s greater than the
proportion of the total contract value which has been invoiced, the Group evaluates whether it has obtamed, through its perfermance to
date, the nght to the un-invoicad consideration and therefore whether revenue should be recognized In particular it considers whether there
15 sufficient certainty that the invoice milestones will be ackieved n the expected timeframe, that the customer considers that the Group's
contractual obligations have been, or will be, {ulfilled and that only those costs budgeted to be incurred will be iIncurred Where the Group
congiders that there 1s insufficient evidence that il 1s probable thal the economic bensfits associated with the transaction will flow into the
Group, taking inte account these criteria, revenue 1s not recogrized until there 1s sufficent evidence that it 1s probable that the economic
benelits associated with the fransaction will flow into the Group




Where an agreement involves saveral componants, 1he total fee 1s allocated to individual components based on the far value of the
components The far value 1s assessed by reference to prices regularly charged for the components when sold separately, or if this cannot
be used then other factors may be considerad, such as the excess of similar agreements over the charges of separately identifiable
components If the far vatue of a component i1s not determinable then the total fee 1s deferred unti! the farr value is determinable or the
component has been delivered to the customer Where 1n effect, two or more components of an agreement are inked and fair values
cannot be allocated to the Indvidual compenents the revenue recognition critena are appled to the compeonents as if they were a single
component

Revenue for maintenance 1s recognized on a straight-line basis over the period for which maintenance 1s contractually agreed with the
icensee

The excess of licence fees, development Income and maintenance invoiced over revenue recognized 1s recorded as deferred income

Royalty revenues are earned on the sale by licensees of products containing the Group's technology Revenues are recognized as they are
earned to the extent that the Group has sufficient evidence of sales of products containing the Group's technology by licensees Nobfication
1s generally received In the quarter following the shipment of the customer's products

Revenues from the sale of goods are recegrized upon delvery

Revenue 18 accounted for net of VAT, discounts and returns Returns are recognized at the point at which the Group has adequate
knowiedge that products are ikely to be returmned by a customer

Ag disclosed above, In accordance with IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes i accounting estimates and errors, the Group makes
significant estimates in applying its revenue recognition policies Estimates are made in particular, in regards to the percentage-of-
completion accounting method, which requires that the extent of progress towards completion of contracts may be anticipated with
reasonable certanty The use of this method 1s based on the assumption that, at the outset of icence agreements there is an msignificant
nsk that customer acceptance will not be obtaned The Group also makes assessments, based on prior experence, of the extent to which
future milestone receipts reprasent a probable future economic benefit to the Group The complexity of the estimation process and 1ssues
refated ic the assumptions, nsks and uncertainties inherent with the application of the revenue recogniion policies affect the amounts
reported In the financial statements If different assumptions were used, it i1s possible that different amounts would be reported in the
financial statements

Research and development costs
Costs of basic and applied research are written off in the penod in which they are incurred

Development expenditure 1s capitalized where it refates to a specific project where technical and commercial feasibility has been
established, adequate technical financial and other resources exist to complate the project the expenditure attributable 1o the project can
be measured rekably and future economic benefits are probable In this case, 1 is recognized as an intangble asset and amortized over its
useful economic life Alt other development expenditure 15 recognized as an expense in the penod in which it 1s incurred

Development costs incurred after the establishment of technical feasibility and overall project and commercial profitability have not been
significant and therefore, no cests have been capralized to date

Employee benefits

The Group contnbuies 1o a defined contribution pension plan Payments are charged to the income statement in the penod to which
they relate

Share-based payment transactions

The share option programmes and the share ncentive arrangements allow employees to acquire shares of the Company The far value of
share Incentives Is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity The far value 1s measured at grant date and spread
aver the penod during which the employee becomes unconditonally entitled to the share incentives The farr value of the share incentives
granted 18 measured using the Black-Scholes or Monte Carlo Simulation models The amount recognized as an expense 1s adusted o
reflect the actual number of share incentives that vest except where forferture 18 due only to market-based performance conditions not
meeting the thresho!d for vesting

Transactions of the Company-sponsored Employee Benefit Trust are ncluded in the Group's consolidated financial statements In particular,
the Trust's purchase of shares in the Company 1s detited direcily In equity 10 retained earnings
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Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the penod comprises current and deferred tax Tax 15 recognized in the income statement except 1o the extent
that it relates to tems recognized directly in equity, In which case it 1s recognized 1N equity

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment 1o tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided using the batance sheet liability method on any temporary differences between the carrying amounis for financial
reponting purposes and those for taxation purposes The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carmang amount of assets and labilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
Temporary differences on goodwill are not provided for as are not deductible for tax purposes

A deferred tax asset 15 recognized only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avalable against which the asset
can be utlkzed Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that It 1s no longer possible that the related tax benefit will be realised

Forewgn exchange

Transachons in foreign currencies are translated 1o the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the rates of exchange ruling at
the dates of the transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are franslated to the functiona! currency at
rates of exchange ruhing at the balance sheet date Exchange gains and losses are taken to the mcome statement

On consolidation, results of foreign subsidiary undertakings are translated at the average rates of exchange for the year The assets and '
liabilities are translated at rates ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing from retranslation have been recognized
directly in the statement of other comprehensive ncome The presentational currency 1s GBP

Segment reporting

An operating segment 1s a componant of the Group that engages i business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, ncluding revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other compenents Al operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regularly by the board of directors 1o make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance and for which discrete financial information 1s avalable

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition and amortized on a straight kne basts over ther estimated useful economic ives The }
residual values of Intangible assets are assumed 1o be nit Usefui economic lives are reviewed on an annual basis When the Group makes

an acquisition, management review the business and assets acquired to determina whether any intangible assets should be recognized

separately from goodwill Farr value of the intangible assets 1s assessed assuming a hypothetical market The Group utiizes the income

based approach when reliable future cash flows are availzble Alternatively, the cost approach ar market approach are utiized

The amortization rates applied are

Developed technology 510 10 years
Customer relationships 10 years

Trade names 15 years

In process R&D 5 years once complete

Software, patents & trademarks 2 to 5 years !

Trade investments

Trade investments are classified as avallable for sale and are stated on the balance sheet at the fair value at the balance sheet date, with
any gain or loss being recognized directly In the statement of comprehensive income impairment losses and gains or losses on initial
recognition are recognized in the income statement When these investments are derecognized, the cumulatve gamn or loss previously
recognized directly in equity 1s recognized in Income statement

The far value of unquoted investments 1s made by reference to recent funding rounds or, N the absence of the former, to a discounted
cash-flow forecast

The Group 15 exposed (o equity secunties price nsk on avalable for sale financial assets As there can be no guarantee that there will be a .
future market for securties or that the value of such investments will nse, the dwectors evaluaie each investment opporiunity on its merits
before committing the Group’s funds The directors review holdings In such companies on a regular basis to determine whether continued



nvestrment 1s in the best interests of the Group Funds for such ventures are hmited in order that the financial effect of any potential decline
of the value of Investments will not be substantial In the context of the Group's financial results

Further detalls of these investments and the valuation basis are detailed in note 9 and note 19

Goodwlt

Purchased goodwil (representing the excess of the far value of the consideration paid or payable over the net farr value of the ientfiable
assets labilies and contingent labilties acquired} ansing on consoldation in respect of acquisitions 15 ¢capitahized Goodwil is allocated to
cash generating units expected to benefit from the acquisition and 1 not amertized Hut tested annually for impairment  Any mpairment 1§
recognized immediately in the income statement and may not be subsequently reversed Impairment testing 1S based on assets grouped at
the lowest possible level at which goodwill 1s morutored for internal management purposes

On disposal of a subsidiary or business, the attributable goodwill s ncluded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal
Goodwill 1s stated on the balance sheet at cost less any accumulated imparment losses

Business combnations that took place prior to 1 Apnl 2004 have not been re-stated and gocdwill represents the amount recognized under
the Group's previous accounting framewaork

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated to write down therr cost using the straight ine method to ther estimated residual vatues over
the pernod of ther estimated useful economic Iives Penodic reviews are made of estimated remaining useful economic ives and residual
values, and the depreciation rates appled are

Freehold land No depreciation
Freehold buidings 50 years
Leasehold improvements Equally over the penod of the lease
Plant and equipment 3to 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Impairment

Non-financial assets

Goodwill has an indefimte usefu! ife, 18 not subject to amortization and 1s tested annually for impairment  Assets that are subject to
amortizatlion or depreciation are reviewed for mpairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrving amount may not be recoverable If any such condition exists, the recoverabla amount of the asset s estimated in order to
deterrming the exdent If any, of the mparment loss Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets,
estmates are made of the cashflows of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of farr value less costs to sell, and value in use [n assessing value In use estimated future cashflows are
discounted to ther present value using a discount rate appropnate to the specific asset or cash generating urit

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 15 estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying value of the asset
or cash generating unit 15 reduced to its recoverable amount Imparment losses are recognized immecdiately In the Income statement

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss 1s reversed if there has been a change i the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount An impairment oss 15 reversed only 1o the extent that the asset’s carryng amount does not exceed the camying
amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amorirzation, if no iImpairment loss had been recogmzed Imparment
losses In respect of goodwill are not reversed

Financial assets

A financeal asset 1s considered to be imparred if objective ewidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset

An:mparment loss In respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost s calculated as the difference between its carrying amount,
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the onginal effective interest rate Animparment loss In respect of an
avalable-for-sale financial asset 1s calculated by reference toits current fair value
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Individually significant financtatl assets are tested for imparment on an individual basis The remaining financial assets are assessed
collectively in groups that share similar crediit rnisk characteristics

Al mparment losses are recognized In the Income statement Any curnulative gain or loss in respect of an avallable-for-sale financial asset
recognized previcusly in equity 1s transferred to the iIncome statement

An impairment loss 15 reversed If the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurnng after the imparment loss was recognized For I
financial assets measured at amortized cost and avallable-for-sale financial assets that are debt secunties the reversal s recognized in profit
or loss For avallable-for-sale financial assets that are equity secunities, the reversal 1s recognized directly in equity

Derivative financial instruments

Currency exchange coniracts are utilized to manage the exchange nsk on actual transactions related to accounts recevable, denominated

I a currancy othar than the functional currency of the business These currency exchange contracts do not subject the Group to nsk from

exchange rale movements because the gans and losses on such contracts offset losses and gains, respecively on the transactions being

hedged The currency exchange contracts and related accounts recaivable are recorded at far value at each penod end The far value |
of forward exchange contracts 1s determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date The far value of foraign i
currency oplions 15 based upon valuations performed by management and the respective banks holding the currency instruments All ‘
recognized gans and losses rasulting from the settlement of the contracts are recorded within general and administrative expenses in the

income statement The Group does not enter Into currency exchange contracts for the purpose of hedging anticipated transactions

Inventories
Inventory I1s valued at the lower of cost and net realisable valug The cost of inventory 1s calculated using the FIFO method Fimished goods
include direct costs and attnbutable overheads based on the normal level of actvity

Cash and equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnses cash balances and call deposits with an onginal maturity of less than cr equal to thres months Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Loans and receivables
Loans and recevables are nwally measured at far vaiue plus any directly attributable transaction costs  Subsequent to inthial recognition,
loans and recewvables are measured at amoriized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairmant losses

Long term borrowing

Long term borrowings are recognized inmally at far value less attributable transaction costs  Subsequent to nhial recognition, long term
horrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the income statement
over the penod of the berrowings on an effective interest basis

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of cwnership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged 1o the income statement on a straight-
ine basis over the penod of the lease

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
In applying the Group's accounting policies described above, management has made the following judgemaents and estmates that have a
significant impact on the amounts recognized n the financial statements

Revenue recognition

The Group has made estimates on the percentage-to-completion for icensing and development work which affect the amount of revenue
recognized in the penod These estmates involve the Group assessing the estimated resource and time required to complete development
projects Please refer to the final paragraph of the Revenue accounting policy disclosed above

Share based payments

The far value of the share Incentives 1s measured at grant date and spread over the pened during which the employee becomes
unconditionally entitled 1o the incentives  The farr value of the share incentives 1s measured using the Black-Scholes or Monte Carlo
Simulation models which take into account the terms and conditions upon which the award was made iIn determining the appropriate




expenss, the Group has made estimates on the kelihood that internal perforrmance targets will be achieved and on the number of
employess that will be employed on vesting Details of share-based payments and the assumptions appled are disclosed in note 21

Taxation

A deferred tax asset (note 5) 1s recognized only Lo the extent that it 1s probable that sufficient taxable proft will be available 1o utiize the
temporary difference The Group has made estimates on the likelihood that future taxable profit wall utilize these tax losses

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill 1s impaired at a minimum on an annual basis This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash generating units to which the goodwill relales Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
fiiure cash flows from the cash generating unit that holds the goodwill at a determined discount rate and an appropnate growth rate to
calculate the present value of those cash fliows Details of assumptions used are set out n note 7

Business combinations

The Group measures contingent consideration at fair value at the acquisition date and assesses any changes 1n far value on an annual
basis This requires the Group to make an estmate of the future payables in respect of the contingent censideration Details of the
assessment performed in the ¢urrent year are set cut in notes 13 and 15

Valuation of acquired intangible assets

When the Group makes an acquisiicn, management review the business and assets acquired to determing whether any intangible assets
should be recognized separately from goodwill If such an asset 1s identified then 1t 1s valued by discaunting the probable future cash flows
expectad to be generated by the asset over the estimated Iife of the asset, or where future cashfiows are less certain by discounting the
cost of replicating such intangible asset Where there i1s uncertainty over the amount of economic benefit and the useful lfe this s factored
Nt the calculahon (note 24)

Investments
The Group has stated trade investmentis at far value

Adopted IFRS not yet applied
The following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations had been ssued but they are not yet effective for the Group and have
not been early adopted Ther adoption Is not expected to have a matenal effect on the financial statements unless otherwise Indicated

Presentation of Hems of Other Comprehensive Income — Amendments 1o I1AS 1 {effective for annual penods being on or after 1 July 2012)
Annual improvements to IFRS - 2009 - 2011 Cycle (effective for annual perods beginning cn or after 1 January 2013}

IFRS 13 Far Value Measurement (effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013)

Amendments to IAS 32 Ofisetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabiities - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014)

IFRS 10 Cansclidated Financial Staternents (effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective for annual penods beginming on or after 1 January 2014)
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2 Segment reporting

The Group determines and presents operating segments based on the information that 15 provided internally to the Board of Directors,
which s the Group's chief operating decision maker The Group 1s organized into iwo operating divisions which offer different services to
different industnes and are managed separately the Technology business and the Pure business The costs of the corporate head office
and other costs which are not controlled by the operating dwisions are allocated to these dwsions These divisions are the operating
segments that are reported to the chief operating decision maker and are the Group's reportable segments There 1s no inter-segrment
tracing anc no signdicant seasonality In the Group's operations although there 1s an increase in trading N the penod leading up ©
Chnstmas

Principal activities are as follows

Technology business - the development of graphics, video, vision, processor, commurnications and connectmity technologies for hicensing to
semiconductor companies for iIncorporation nto silicon devices

Pure business - the development and marketing of consumer products to showcase the technclogies of the Technolegy business and to
develop new and emerging markels for such technologies

Information regarding the operations of each repertable segment 1s Included below Performance 1s measured based on operating profit
Operating costs within the Technology business are not atirbutable to specific Income streams and have not been allocated to specific
ncome streams

2013 2012
£'000 £ 000
Revenue
Technelogy business
Licensing 29,112 34,392
Royalties 95,051 63,849
Other 1,553 -
Total 125,716 08,241
Pure business 25,751 29,258
151,467 127,499
Operating profit / {loss)
Technology business 18,857 32,712
Pure business (7,572} (4,349)
Segment cperating profit 11,285 28,367
Net financing income 875 177
Profit before tax 12,160 28,544
Taxation {5,884) (8.083)
Profit for the financial year 6,276 20,461




2013 2012
£'000 £000
Total assets
Technology business 239,796 117,469
Pure business 10,923 10,114
Total segment assets 250,719 127,583
Cash and cash equivalents 76,572 66 262
Deferred tax 10,446 18 829
Unallocated assets 291 44
Total assets 338,728 212,718
Totat habihties
Technology business 143,076 25,093
Pure business 4,260 4,711
Tolal segment habilities 147,336 29,804
Unallocated hatuhities - 5827
Total habilities 147,336 35,331
Other segment items Technology business 21,787 12,021
Capital expenditure Pure business 1,451 290
23,238 12,311
Depreciation and amortization Technology business 8,057 5,401
Pure business 317 378
8,374 5,779
Revenue 1s reported by geographical area of sales as follows
2013 2012
£'000 £000
usa 85,189 63,051
Asia 32,518 28,803
United Kingdom 21,812 22,089
Rest of Eurcpe 9,319 10,614
Rest of North Amenica 1,411 610
Rest of the world 1,218 2,332
151,467 127,499

The basis {or attnbuting external customers 1o individual countnes 1s the customer's country of domicile

Revenue from the largest customer of the Group In the year, which 1s included in revenue for the Technology division represents

approximately £56,870,000 of the Group's totat revenues No other ndividual customier represents over 10% of the Group’s revenua

All revenue onginated matenally from the United Kingdom

The operating profit, net assets and capital expenditure of the Group matenally refate to the United Kingdom
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Adjusted profit

Adjusted profit 1s used by management to measure the performance of the business year on year by excluding non-recurnng items non-
cash based share incentive charges and amortization of intangible assets acquired from acquisitions

Yoar to 30 Apnl 2013

Year to 3¢ Aprl 2012

Notes Technology Pure Total Technology Pure Total
£'000 £000 £'000 €000 £000 £ 000
Reporied cperating profit 18,857 (7,572) 11,285 32712 {4,345) 28,367
Share-based incentive costis 4 10,190 1,126 11,316 8,905 1,410 13,315
Net gain on Investments 9 (1,763) - (1,763) 822) - (822)
Impairment of investments 9 5,679 - 5,679 145 - 145
Amortization of intangibles from acquisitions 7 4,207 - 4,207 2,669 - 2,669
Acquisition related tems 2,744 - 2,744 - - -
Contingant acquisition consideration release - - - (4 009) - {4.009)
Adjusted operating profit / {loss) 39,914 {6,446) 33,468 39,600 (2,935) 36,665
Net financing income 875 177
Adjusted profit before tax 34,343 36,842
3 Expenses
2013 ame
£000 £ 000
Operating profit 1s stated after charging/(crediting)
Depreciation and amortization of owned property, plant and equipment and 8,374 5,807
intangible assets
Foreign exchange gan {1,148} {219)
Operating lease rentals
Preperty 2,298 1,456
Other 5,906 4,843
Auditor's remuneration
Audit of these financial statements 25 24
Amount recerved by auditor and ther associates in respect of
Audit of financial statements of subsidianes of the Group 116 54
Audit-related assurance servicas 12 -
Other assurance services 4 -
Other services - tax fitlng services - 2
157 80

Amounts paid to the Group's auditer in respect of services to the Group other than the audit of the Group s financiat statements, have not

been disclosed as the information is required instead to be disclosed on a consolidated basis

4 Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including directors) was 2013 2012
Research and development 1,000 743
Production 45 a1
Adrministration 97 ag
Sales and marketing 107 95

1,249 967




The aggragate payroll costs of these persons were 2013 2012
£'000 £ 000

Wages and salanes 43,483 36,311
Saocral secunty costs 4,025 3,463
Other pension costs 2,302 2,536
Share-based payment 11,316 10,315
61,126 52,825

Details of the share-based payments are set out in note 21

Complete information o the share Incenives and shares held by directors 1s set out in the Director's Renumeration Report on pages 5910 65

5 Taxation

2013 2012
£'000 £ 000

Analysis of tax charge in the year
Current tax charge
UK corporation tax 1,088 4,540
Foresgn tax 263 1,416
Total current tax charge 1,351 5,856
Deferred tax
Onginatien and reversal of timing diferences 4,257 1,721
Effect of changes In tax rates on opening balances 36 106
Effect of changes In tax rates on closing balances 268 795
Changes n recoverable amounits of deferred tax assets 460 -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (488) -
Benefit from previously unrecognized tax loss - (495)
Total deferred tax 4,533 2,127
Total Income tax charge 5,884 8,083

The total tax charge for the year of £5,884,000 (2012 £8,083.000) 1s higher (2012 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the

UK of 23 9% {2012 258%) The difference 15 explained below

2013 2012
£'000 £ 000
Profit before taxation 12,160 28,544
Notional tax charge at UK standard rate of 23 9% (2012 25 8%) 2,906 7,364
Permanent differences {714) (2,495)
Transfers from previously unrecognized tax assets 3,097 1,873
Effect of tax rate change 296 01
Adjustmenis in respect of pnor penods (488) {75)
Withholding tax 1,430 1,241
Higher taxes on overseas earnings (643) (826)
Total iIncome tax charge 5,884 8,083
Tax on items charged to equity
Deferred tax charge 4,881 2,978
Current tax credd {1,088) {4,540)

The principal element of the deferred tax charge recorded against equity relates to the reversal of previously recognized deferred tax assets

which were credited to equity The reversal of the asset oceurs upon the exercise of share based incentives
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Current tax hability
At 30 April 2013, there 15 a current tax hability of £56,278 000 (2012 ©niy Of the 2013 kability, £55 918,000 relates to MIPS Technologies,
Inc (MIPS) This tax hiability s the result of MIPS completing a sale of patents for £240,000,000 prior t0 its acquisition by the Group

Deferred tax
The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as follows

A3 at On acquisition Recogrizedin Recognized As at

1 May 12 of subsidiaries Income statement in equity 30 Apnt 2043

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £ 000

Tax losses 10,20 - (8,372) - 1,829
Share based payments {note 21) 10,804 - 2.030 {5.025) 7,809
Other timing differences 131 2,369 {1,857) - 643
Capital allowances (1 847) 14 2,226 - 393
Gain on investments {460) - 316 144 -
Gain on foreign exchange cantract - - (228) - (228)
Acquisition of intangible assets (3.426) (17.167) 1,352 - {19,241)
15,403 (14,784) {4,533) (4 881) (8,795)

013 2012

£'000 £ 000

Deferred taxation has been presented on the balance sheet as follows

Deferred tax asset 10,446 18,820
Deferred tax lability (19,241) (3,426)
At end of tha penod (8,795) 15,403

An additional £nil {2012 £435,000) of previously unrecognized tax assets were recognized in the year Management consider the utilisation
of the £10,446,000 (2012 £18,829,000} deferred tax asset to be prebable based on assessment of forecasts of future taxable profits

During the year the deferred tax liability increased by £17,167,000 as a result of a hability ansing on intangible assets acquired as part of
the acquisition of MIPS This deferred tax llability will reduce as the intangible assets are amortized over therr useful lives with the balance
remaining at year end set out above Further details on the acquisitron are set out In note 24

Deferred tax assets and liabiities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset and there s an intention to settle the
balarce net

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets of £15,102,000 (2012 £211,633,000) reported at the applicable tax rate, have not been recognized in respect of tax
losses in the US totafing £43,149 000 (2012 £33,237 000) Tax losses are increasing in the US as a result of continued R&D investment by
the Group into its US subsidiaries

The losses are avallable for utihzation against profit ansing in the US in future penods None of the losses in the current year balance relate
to the UK (2012 Cnil)

In March 2012 the Changellor revised the previously announced reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax to 24% with effect from
1 April 2012 and a further reduction to 23% with affect from 1 Apnl 2013 These changes became substantively enacted on 26 March 2012
and 3 July 2012 respectively and therefore the effect of these rate reductions has been included in the figures above

The Chancellor proposed a further change to reduce the main rate of corporation tax to 21% wiih effect from 1 Apnt 2014, but this change
has not been substantively enacted and therefore 1s not included in the figures above The overall effect would be {0 decrease the deferred
tax asset



6 Earnings per share

2013 2012

£'000 £ 000

Profit attrbutable to equity holders of the parent 6,276 20 461
2013 2012

Shares Snares

000 000

Restated

Werghted average number of shares In 1ssuge 264,903 260 503
Less Weighted average number of shares held by Employee Benefit Trust (2,896) (3,601}
Effect of dilutve shares Employee incentive schemes 12,925 14 205
Weighted average number of shares potentially in 1ssue 274,932 271,107
2013 2012

Restated

Earnings per share Basic 24p 80p
Diluted 23p 75p

Oiluted earnings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion of all
potential dilutive ordinary shares Detalls of the schemes considered n amving at the potentially diutive ordinary shares are set out in ncte 21

Adjusted earnings per share

2013 2012

£000 £ 000

Rastated

Adusted profit before tax — (see note 2) 34,343 36,842
Adjusted taxation charge (9,689) (10778)
Adiusted profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 24,654 26,064
2013 2012

Shares Shares

000 000

Hestated

Weighted average number of shares in 1Issue 264,903 260,503
Less Waighted average number of shares held by Employee Benefit Trust {2,896) (3,601)
Effect of dilutive shares Employee incentve schemes 12,925 14,205
Weighted average number of shares potentially in 1ssue 274,932 271,107
2013 2012

Restated

Adjusted earnings per share Basic 94p 101p
Difuted 90p g6p

Adjusted earnings per share 1s calculated using adjusled profit attributable to equity holders of the parent which is derved from the adjusted

profil before tax descniped n note 2

The 2012 Basic Diluted and Adjusted earnings per share figures have been restated due to the Employee Benefit Trust shares being

incorrectly included in the weighted average number of shares in issug

The approach to caiculating the 1axation charge which is included in the adjusted earnings per share calculation has changed and has
necessitated a restaternent of the 2012 figures The tax effect of the ncome statement tems which are sinpped out of statutory operating
profit to denve adjusted operating profit (see note 2) has been assessed, and the statutory tax charge as disclosed in the consolidated

income statement has been adjusted accordingly to provide a more relevant adjusted earnings per share calculation
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7 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Intangible assets

Software, patents

Goodwill from acquisitions® and tradernarks Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 May 2011 34,350 13,348 10,940 58,638
Additions - - 803 803
Adjustment 820 - - 820
At 30 Apnl 2012 35170 13,348 11,743 80,261
At 1 May 2012 35,170 13,348 11,743 60,261
Additions - - 1,119 1,119
Acauisition of subsidianes 23,328 51,112 1,069 75,609
At 30 Apnl 2013 58,498 64,460 13,931 136,889
Amortization
At 1 May 2011 3,517 890 9,143 13,550
Charge for the year - 2,669 918 3,587
At 30 Aprl 2012 3,617 3,559 10,081 17,137
At 1 May 2012 3,517 3,559 10,061 17,137
Charge for the year - 4,207 949 5,156
At 30 Apnl 2013 3,517 7,766 11,010 22,293
Net book value at 30 Apnl 2011 30,833 12,458 1,797 45,088
Net book value at 30 April 2012 31 653 9,789 1682 43,124
Net book value at 30 Aprl 2013 54,981 56,694 2,921 114,596

‘Intangible assets from acquisitions are analysed below




Developed Custornar
technology relationships Trade names In process R&D Total
£000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Cost
At 1 May 2011 13,348 - - - 13,348
At 30 April 2012 13,348 - - - 13,348
At 1 May 2012 13,348 - - - 13,348
Acqguisition of subsidianes 41,596 7.153 1,597 766 51,112
At 30 Apn$ 2013 54,944 7153 1,597 766 64,460
Amortization
At 1 May 2011 880 - - - 890
Charge for the year 2,669 - - - 2,668
At 30 Apri 2012 3559 - - - 3559
At 1 May 2012 3,559 - - - 3,659
Charge for the year 4,002 178 27 - 4,207
At 30 April 2013 7,561 178 27 - 7,766
Net book value at 30 Apnl 2011 12,458 - - - 12,458
Net book value at 30 Aprit 2012 9789 - - - 9,789
Net book value at 30 Apnl 2013 47,383 6,975 1,570 766 56,694

Goodwil was acquired through acguisitions and relates to the Technology business, which is considered to be a single cash-generating
unit During the penod the Group tested its balance of goodwill for impairment it accordance with IAS 385, impairment of Assets The test
was based on a calcutation of the recoverable amount based on value In use, using projected cash flows for the Technology business

The kay assumpthans in the value in use calculations were

Penod over which the directors have projected cashflows — a three year forecast penod 1s used which s based on management forecasts
of future profits, with an assumed terminal growth rate after 2016 of 2 5% per annum (2012 2 5%) The terminal growth rate 1s assessed
taking intc account general economic conditions

Foracast revenue growth - the revenue projections are consistent with those used by the Group for financial planning purposes

Forecast operating margins — the operating margin projeciions are consistent with those used by the Group for financial planning purposes

Discount rate - future cash flows are discountad at a rate of 10% which represents a pre tax rate that reflects the Group's weighted average

cost of capital adjusted for the nsks specific to the Technology business (2012 10%)

The directors do not believe that any reasonably foreseeable changes to key assumptions would result in an impairmert of goodwill, such is
the margin by which the estimated far value exceeds the carrying value

The £820,000 adjusiment made to goodwill In the prior year represented a correction of the goodwill balance recorded in the year ended
30 April 2G11 1n relation to the HelloSott acquisiion Goodwill was increased In the prior year to reflect HelloSoft's pre-acquisition deferred
ncome balance which was inadvertently excluded from the far value of net assets at acquisition date and hence from the calculation of

goodwill
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8 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land Leasehold Plant and
and bulldings mprovements equipment Total
£000 €000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 May 2011 10,614 3,108 13,480 27,202
Additions B 266 264 3.C06 11,536
Disposals - - (6) {B)
At 30 Apnl 2012 18,880 3.372 16480 38,732
At 1 May 2012 18,880 3,372 16,480 38,732
Additions 17,065 419 4,635 22,119
Acqguisition of subsidianes - 168 2,063 2,231
Disposals - {406) (324) (730)
At 30 Apnl 2013 35,945 3,553 22,854 62,352
Depreciation
At 1 May 2011 240 1,737 9,502 11,479
Charge for the year 278 261 1,681 2,220
Disposals - - - -
At 30 April 2012 518 1,998 11,183 13,699
At 1 May 2012 518 1,998 11,183 13,699
Charge for the year 444 361 2,413 3,218
Disposals - {398) 40} {438)
At 30 Apri 2013 262 1,961 13,556 16,479
Net book value at 30 Apnl 2011 10,374 1,371 3,978 15723
Net book value at 30 Aprl 2012 18,362 1,374 5,297 25,033
Net book vatue at 30 April 2013 34,983 1,592 9,298 45,873
2013 2012
£000 £ 00C
The net book value of freehold land and buldings compnses
L.and 9,349 5,072
Buildings 25,634 13,280
34,983 18,362

During the year, a reclassification of fixed assets with a net book value of £4,277,000 was mace from buifdings to land Thus reclassification

was made as it more accurately reflects the split between these two classes of the oniginal value paid by the Group for two separate
properties when they were acguirad in November 2010 The intention at the tme of acquisition was that the properties would ba
demolished and that new buldings would be constructed in ther place, therefore the majenty of the value pad was for the land

At 30 April 2013 the unamortised cost of buldings under construction accounted for within freehold land and buidings was £8,412,000

(2012 £7,888 000)




9 Investments

2013 2012
£000 £000
Trade mvestments classified as avalable for sale 18,711 12,985

The investments relate to the Group's holdings in Toumaz Limited {'Toumaz') , GreenPlug, Inc ('Greenplug’), Audioboo Limited ('Audioboo’),
Orca Systems, Inc ( Orca'), Blu-Wireless, UBGC Media Group Plc { UBCY), 7digtal Group, Inc {7digital’) and Ineda Systems, Inc ('Ineda’)

Frontier Silicon ( Frontier’) — At the previous balance sheet date, the Group held a loan note issued by Frontier with a value of £785,000 This
loan note was repaid to the Group during the year

The Group’s eguity investment i Frontier was held at Cntf at the previous balance sheet date  Dunng the year Toumaz purchased
the Group’s holding in Frontier through a share exchange The farr value of the Toumaz shares received at the date of exchange was
£2,057,000 and this generated a gain on the investment in Frontier which has been recognized in the Consolidated income Statement

Teumaz ~ The Group received shares in exchange for its holding in Frontier The far value of these shares was £2,057,000 The Group
further increased its holding In Toumaz by nvesting £794,000 in cash The far value of these shares acquired at the acquisition date was
£678 000 which generated a loss on investment of £116 000 This loss has been recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement during
the year At the balance sheet date, the Group's Investment in Toumaz was valued at £8,785,000 (2012 £8,338,000) by reference to the
quoted share price of Toumaz at the reporting date investment in Toumaz was written down by £5,278,000 to reflect its share pnce at year-
end 589 000 has been recorded within other comprehensive Income as a reversal of a previous far value increase, and £4,679,000 has
been recorded In the Consolidated Income Statement reflecting an imparment i the cost of the enginal investment

GreenPiug - Duning the year the Group made a further investment n GreenPlug of £929,000 This comprnised a cash nvestment of
£309,000 and the provision of lcenced deliverables totaling £620,000 At the balance sheet date a £401,000 increase in the value of
the investment due 1o foreign exchange movement has been recognized as a change in far value of avalable for sale investments n
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  Due to delays in the commercial exploitation of the technology a provision for
impairment of £1,000 000 has been recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement reflecting the decrease in the farr value of the
investment The carrying value of the investment in Greenplug at the balance sheet date 1s £2,500,000

Audioboo - During the year the Group increased its holding in Audicboo by acquinng B5,85% shares for £170,000 in a funding round By
reference to this funding round the Group's holding In Audioboo was valued at £347,000 (2012 £251,000) The £75,000 reduction in the
far value as at disposal has been recognized in the Consolidated Income Staternent during the year Subseguently UBC purchased the
Group’s entfire holding N Audiobgo for consideration of shares in UBC The farr value of the shares receved was £272,000 The £75,000
loss on disposal of Audioboo has been recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement dunng the year

UBC - The Group recewved shares with a far value of £272,000 n exchange for its holding in Audioboo The Group then made a further
cash invesiment of £342,000 in UBC during the year The farr value of these shares acquired was £28,000 less than the consideration
paid resulting In a loss on INvestment that has been recognized in the Consolidated Income Staternent At the balance sheet date a gain
of £77.000 created as a result of the movement It UBC’s share price has been recognized as a change in fair value of available for sale
investments n the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  The carrying value of the iInvestment in UBC at the balance sheet
date s £663,000

Crea ~ During the year the Group further invested in Grea through the purchase of a convertible promissory noie for £132,000 At the

balance sheet date an £18,000 increase in the value of the investment due to foreign exchange movements resutied in a carrying value
of £580,00C The £18,000 ncrease has been recognized as a change n far value of availlable for sale investments in the Consclidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income

7digital - Duning the year the Group made a cash nvestment of £4,330,000 in 7digital At the balance sheet date a £184,000 increase in
the value of the investment due to foreign exchange movements resulted in a carrying value ¢f £4,514,000 The £184,000 increase has
been recognized as a change in far value of avalable for sale investments in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Blu-Wireless — The Group's investiment in Blu-Wireless remains at £nil (2012 £nil)
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Ineda — Dunng the year, the Group made a £3 740 000 nvestment in Ineda This compnsed a cash investment of £1,322 000 when

purchasing a convertible promissory nate, and the provision of licenced deliverables totaling £2.4 18,000 which Ineda setlled by issuing
equity shares At the balance sheet date an £81,000 decrease in the value of the Investment due to foreign exchange movements resulted
In a carrying value of £3 659,000 The £81,000 decrease has been recogrized as a change in far value of avalable for sale investments in

the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

All gains and impawrment charges relating to trade investments classified as avalable for sale relate to the Technology business

10 Inventories

2013 2012

£'000 £ 000

Raw matenals and components 1,036 252
Firushed goods 7,476 5,165
8,512 5417

Provisions of £644,000 (2012 £631 000) recognized in cost of sales were made against nventanes During the penod, £719,000 (2012
£487,000) of the provision against inventones was utiized for the wnte-down and write off of nventones As at 30 Aprl 2013 the provision

for obsolescence of nventories was £466,000 (2012 £541,000)

Raw matenals, consumables and changes in fireshed goods and work in progress recognized as cost of sales in the penod amounted to

£19,538 000 (2012 £20 373,000}

11 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables ~ current assets

2013 2012
£1000 £ 000
Trade recevables 33,840 24,957
Prepayments and accrued incomea 24,499 13,638
Cther receivables 5,679 2,473
64,018 41,068
Prowisions for imparrment of £178,000 (2012 Cnil) recognized in operating expensas were mace aganst recevabigs £125,000(2012
£nil) of provisions were utiized by wnting down the gross value of recevables As at 30 April 2018 the prowision for impairment of trade
recevables was £nil 2012 £125,000)
12 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
£000 £000
Cash at bank - short term deposits 71,033 63,234
Cash at bank — current account 5,539 3,028
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of financial posibon 76,572 66,262
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash flows 76,572 66,262




13 Trade and other payables

2013 2012

£'000 £000

Trade payables 6,491 5,807
Other taxes and social secunty 1,477 1,585
Other payebtes 1,629 1,234
Accruals and deferred income 23,828 15,938
Deferred and contingent consideraticn 2,150 1.814
35,575 26 378

The deferred and contingent consideration 1s in respect of the acquisihions of HelleScft, Inc (£1,662,000} and Nethra Imaging, Inc
(£488,000} and represents an assessment of probable future consideration converted using the period end exchange rate, due within 12
menths based on contractual payment dates

14 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

2013 2012
£000 £000
Current liabilities

Bank loan 4,643 496

Non-current habilities
Bank lpan 26,309 5,031
30,952 5,527
Borrowings to be repad within one yaar 4,643 498
Borrowings to be repad between one and five years 26,309 5,031
Borrowings to be repaid cver five years 0 0
30,952 5,627

In February 2013, the Group drew down a $48,000,000 term loan which was used 1o part fund the acquisition of MIPS Technologies Inc
The loan 1s repayable in six, six monthly Nstalments commencing on the first anniversary of draw-down in February 2014 and finishing

in August 2016 The ioan 1s subject to vanable quarterly nterest payments at a rate of 1 5% above 3 menth LIBOR on the outstanding
balance

As part of the renegotiation of the Group's banking facilities which occurred during the year, the two bank loans disclosed in the prior year
were rgpaid in full

The Group's bank loan revolving credit facility and overdraft faciity are secured by a debenture dated March 2013 which gives HSEC Bank
plc a fixed and finating charge over the assets of the Group and its principal subsidiary Imagination Technologies Limited The bank alse has
a legal charge over freehold land and bulldings owned by the Group, which have a net book value of £25 361,000

15 Other payables

Other non-current payables

2013 2012

£'000 £000

Other payables 1,285 -
Ceferred income 1,036 -
Corporation tax 2,418 -
Deferred and contingent consideration 550 -
5,289 -
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The deferred and contingent consideration is In respect of the acquisition of Nethra Imaging, Inc and represents an assessment of probable
future consideration converted using the perod end exchange rate, due within 12 months based on contractual payment dates

16 Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital

Authorised Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10p each Na £ 000 No £ 000
At 1 May 2012 300 000,000 30,000 264,246,455 26 425
issued during period - - 1,465,333 146
At 30 April 2013 300,000,000 30,000 265,711,788 26,571

The nghts attached to ordinary shares are as set out in the Directors’ Report on page 43

Share capital and share premium

The movement on the share capital and share premium reserve in the penod anses from the 1ssue of 1,465,333 crdinary shares fully paid
pursuant to the terms of vanous Empioyee Share Option Schemes and the exercise of warrants The consideration for the shares was
£1,034,000 Of this consideration, £1,003,000 was settled in cash and £31,000 relating to shares issued at nil cost under the terms of

specific employee share schemes, was debited to reserves

Other capital reserve

The balance on the other capital reserve reflacts the value of warrants 1ssued in respect of the acquisiion of Ensigma Limited

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arose In the Group reconstruction in 1894 prior to its flotation

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of the trade investments classified as avallable for sale until the

nvastments are derecognized

Translation reserve

The translation reserve reflects the exchange differences from retranslation of the opening net iInvestments in overseas subsidiaries to
closing rate and translation of the results for the year from average rates to the closing rate

17 Operating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

Land and buildings Other
203 2012 2013 2012
£'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Within one year 2,322 1,457 5,050 4,464
In two to five years 2,722 2,198 7,144 7,450
After five years - - - -
5,044 3,605 12,194 11,914

Cther ocperating ieases include the rental of software and vehicles




18 Capital commitments

At 30 Apnl 2013, the Group had contractual capital commitments of £14,535,000 (2012 £7,152,000) The increase I1s due to obligations
entered into dunng the year to commence waork on a new bulding The majonty of the work 1s due to be completed in the year endec 30
Apri 2014 with the remainder duge early in the year ended Apnl 2015

19 Financial instruments

Overview
The Group has exposure to the folliowing nsks from its use of financial instruments

* Market nsk
* Credit risk
+ Liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, policies and processes for
measunng and managing nsk

The Board of irectors has overall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Group's nsk management framework

Categories of financial instruments

Detalls of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted including the cntena for recognition, the basis of measuremant and the
basis on which income and expenses are recegnized in respect of each class of financial assets, financial lability and eguity instrument are
disclosed in note 1 to the financral statements

2013 2012
Notes €000 £ 000
Financial assets
lLoans and receivables
Trade and other recevables 11 39,519 27,430
Cash and cash equivaients 12 76,572 66,262
Avallable for sale investments g 18,711 12,985
Total financial assets 134,802 106,677
2013 2012
Notes £'000 £ 000
Financtal habibties
Bank lcan 14 30,952 5,527
Trade and other payables 13 9,597 8,626
Total financial habilities 40,549 14,153

Market nisk

Market nsk I1s the nsk that changes 1 the market prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group’s
Income or the value of its holdings of financial Nstruments  The objective of market nsk 15 to manage and contral market nsk exposures
within acceptable parameters, whilst cptimizing the return on nsk

a) Foreign currency nsk

The Group transacts licence and development agreements with customers and purchases of products for Pure pnmarily in US Dollars and,
therefore, the Group's earnings are exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates The Group reviews its foreign exchange exposure
on a regular basis and f there 15 a matenal exposure to exchange rate fluctuations and the Board considers 1t appropriate, the Group will
reduce the nsk by currency hedging on net recevable/payable balances Forward contracts are entered into with the objective of matching
their maturity with currency recaipt Dunng the penicd the total value of currency contracts entered into amounted to £61 722 000
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{2012 £6,182 000} As at 30 Apnl 2013 the outstanding currency contracts amounted to £33,437,000 (2012 £7 993,000) The far value of
these outstanding currency contracts was £891,000 (2012 £44,000) The movement n fair value of £947,000 has been recogrized within
finance income in the period

The analysis of financial assets and habilities by foreign currency 1s as follows rrespective of the functional currency of the transacting entity

30 Apnl 2013 30 Apni 2012

£ $ € Other Totat £ g € Cther Total

Trade receivables 1,667 31,788 348 37 33,840 2033 22,151 621 152 24957
COther recevables 3,153 2,01 11 424 5,679 1,467 688 10 308 2,473
Cash and cash eguivalents 8,730 65,109 1,348 1,385 76,572 54,328 7 692 3,355 887 66,262
Available for sale assets 7,458 11,253 - - 18,711 10,384 2 801 - - 12,985
Trade payables {4,587) (1,700) (98) {106) (6,491} (3,820) (1,8637) (311) 39) (5.807)
Other payables {2,991} - (13) {102) (3,108} {(1,873) (566) {11} (369) (2 819)
Bark loan - {30,952) - - {30,952) (5,527) - - -~ {5,527)
13,430 77,589 1,596 1,638 94,253 57,001 30,929 3,864 939 92524

The significant foreign exchange nisks for the Group are USD recevables of £28,702 000 and the USD lean of £30,852,000 held by the UK
entities  The majority of the other assets and habilitiss are held within foreign subsidiaries in the respective local currencies

The majority of the USD cash and cash squivalents balance s 1o settle a pre acquisition tax lability of MIPS

The Group has a number of overseas business operations and operates In a number of foreign currencies which give nse to transactional
and translational foraign exchange nsk The most important foreign currency to the Group is the US Doellar

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group transacts a large propertion of its revenues and costs in US Dollars Taking all ncome and expenditura in US Doltars into
account management have appraised that for the financial year to 30 April 2013, sach addtional one cent ncrease or decrease in the US
Dollar exchange rate aganst Sterling would have decreased or ncreased revenues by crrea £725,000 (2012 £615,000) and profit by circa
£436,000 {2012 £395 000)

b} Interest rate nisk

The Group's earnings may be affected by changes In Interest rates avalable on bank deposits The Group ams to maximize returns from
funds held on deposit and uses market deposits with major cleanng banks accordingly With the current fevel of bank deposits, the impact
of a change In interest rates 1s not considered matenal

In raspect of ncome-earning financial assets and interest beanng financial labiities, the following table indicates therr average effective
interest rate at the reporting date and the penods in which they mature or, If earlier, reprice



2013 2012

Effective <1 ysar > 1year Total Effectve < 1 year > 1 year Total
interaest rate £"000 £'000 €£'000 nterast rate £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Cash and cash egquivalents
Sterling 8,730 - 8,730 54,328 - 54,328
US Dollars 65,109 - 65,109 7,692 - 7.692
EU currencies 1,348 - 1,348 3,355 - 3,355
Yen 396 - 396 64 - 64
Rupees 343 - 343 171 - 171
Yuan 83 - 93 17 - 17
Zlcty 53 - 53 98 - o8
New Zealand Dollars 33 - 33 - - -
Australian Dollars 467 - 487 537 - 537
76,572 - 76,572 66 262 - 66 262
Floating rate 00% 5,539 - 5,539 00% 3,028 - 3,028
Fixed rate 03% 71,033 - 71,033 0 3% 63,234 - 63,234
76,572 - 76,572 66,262 - 66,262

Bank Loan

Secured bank loan - Sterling* - - - - 25% 62) {251) {313)
Secured bank loan ~ Sterling* - - - - 24% (435) 4,780) (b 215}
Securad bank loan - USD* 18% (4,643) {26,309) {30,952) - - - -
(4,643} {26,309) {30,952} (497) (5.031) (5,528)

At floating rate See note 14 for details

The fixed rate cash deposits were placed with banks throughout the year and earned interest of between ¢ 00% and G 51% Floating rale
cash earns interest based on LIBID equivalents

Short term recervables and payables are not interest beanng with the exception of the shart term element of the long term loan

The Group repaid its two long term loans and took out a new loan dunng the year with a balance of £30,852,000 &t the balance sheet date
The ioan floats at 1 5% above quarierly LIBOR and the unexpred term s 3 years and 3 months

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

In the financial year to 30 April 2013 1f interest rates had been 100 basis points higher and all other vanables were held constant, the
Group s profit woudd have been increased by circa £255,000 (2012 £466 C00) Simiarly, if interest rates had been 100 basis points lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit would have been tdecreased by circa £133 000 (2012 £247,000)

Credit nsk

Credit nsk I1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial nstrurment fals to meet its contraciual
obligations, and anses principally from the Group's recaivables from customers and iInvestment of iquid funds

The Group hmits 1S exposure to credit nsk by only investing in lquid secunities and only with counter parties that have a high credit rating

Capital nsk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entittes in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return
to stakeholders as well as sustaining the future development of the business In order to maintain or adust the capital structure, the Group
may censider the total ameunt of dvidends pard to shareholders, return capital {o shareholders, 1ssued new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the previous financral year
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The capital struciure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 14, cash and cash equivalents
and equity atinbutable to the parent The latter comprises share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in note 16 and the
Consoldated Statement of Changes in Equity The CFQ reguiarly monitors the capital nsk on behalf of the Board

Trade receivables

The exposura to credit nsk 1s mitigated by seling to a diverse range of customers The Group has implemented policies that require
appropriate credit checks on potential customers prior to sales taking place At the balance sheet date there were no significant
concentrations of credit nsk either by customer or by gecgraphy The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet

Gross impairment Gross Impairment

2013 2013 2012 2012

Ageing of trade receivables £'000 £'000 £ 000 2000
Not past due 27,398 - 19 565 -
Past due 0-90 days 4,174 - 3,839 -
Past due greater than 90 days 2,268 - 1,578 (125)
33,840 - 25,082 (125)

Trade recewvables that are less than three months overdue are generally not considared impaired Recelvables more than three months
overdue are considered on a line by ine basis and a provision 1s made where recovery 18 considerad doubtful

No other financial assets are past due

Liquidhty nisk
Liquichty nsk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due To minimize this risk the Group only
invests funds in iguid securties As a contingency, the Group maimains a £3 milion overdraft and £20 million revolving cradit faciity

The following table 1s drawn up based on undiscounted contractual matunties ncluding both interest and prncipal cashflows

Carrying Contractual Less than More than

amount cashflows 1 year 1-2 years 2.5 years 5 years

April 2013 £'000Q £'000 £'000 £000 £000 €000
Bank loan 30,952 31,092 4,783 9,286 17,023 -
Trade and other payables 9,597 9,697 9,597 - - -
40,549 40,689 14,380 9,286 17,023 -

Carrying Contractual Less than More than

amaount cashflows 1 year 1 2 years 2 byears Syears

Aprik 2012 £ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Bank loan 5527 5,861 828 1803 3,330 -
Trade and other payables 8 686 8,686 8,686 - - -
14,213 14,547 9314 1,803 3330 -

Fair values of financial instruments

Farr value 1s defined as the amount at which a financial Instrument could be exchanged N an arm's length transaction between two nformed
and wiling parties and 1s calculaied by reference to market rates discounted to current valug




2013 2012

Carrying amount Carrying amount
and fair value and far value
Notes £'000 £ 000
Financial assets

Trade and other recevables 11 39,290 27,430
Cash and cash equivalents 12 76,572 66,262
Avallable for sale investments 9 18,711 12,885

Financial habilities
Long term torrowings 14 (30,952) {5.527)
Trade and other payables 13 (9,597) {8,626}

Assumptions used In estimating the farr values of financial instrurments reflected In the table above

Cash and cash equivalents
The far value approximates to beok value due to the short term matunty of these instruments

Available for sale investments

Fair value huerarchy

The Group measures the far value of avalable for sale inwestments using the following hierarchy that reflects the sigrificance of the inputs
used in making the measurement

Level 1 Quoled market price (unadjusted} in an active market for an identical financial Instrument

Level 2 Valuation technigues based on observable inputs, such as market prices for similar financial Instruments

level 3 Valuaton techniques using unobservable INputs which can have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation

The Group has applied the above hierarchy to its invesiments as follows

Toumaz - the valuation 1s based on the quoted share price for Tournaz Holdings on AlM  This invesiment is categorised as Level 1
UBC - the valuation s based on the quoted share price for UBC Media Group on AIM  This investment 1s categonised as Level 1

GreenPlug - the valuation of the equity holding In GreenPlug 1s based on management s best estimate based on information made available
to them This investment 1s categorised as Level 3

Orca - the valuation 1s based on the purchase pnice of the investment This investment 1s categorsed as Level 3

7digital - the valuation 1s based on the purchase price of the invesiment which was acquired during the year This investment is categonsed
as Level 3

tnada - the valuaton 1s based on the purchase price of the investment This investment 1s categonsed as Level 3

The following table analyses investments, measured at far value at the reporting date, by the level in the far value hierarchy into which the
far value measurement Is categonsed

2013 2012

£000 £ 000

Level 1 7,458 9338
Level 2 - -
Level 3 11,253 3,647
18,711 12,985
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The following table shows a reconciliation from opening balances to the closing balances for far value measurerments in Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy

£060

At 30 April 2012 3,647

investment Iin the year 9,301
Total gains and losses

In mcorme statement 907

In other comprehensive Income 522

Disposals (3.124)

At 30 Aprnil 2013 11,253

Although the Group believes that its estmates of far value are appropnate, the use of different methodotogles or assumptions could lead to
different measuraments of farr value

With respect 1o far value measurements in Level 3 of the farr value higrarchy, the valuation of GreenPlug 1s Management s best estimate
as at the balance sheet date based on information avallable 1o thern  Anmpairment of £1,000 000 has been recogmized n the current
year The valuation as at 30 Apnl 2013 would be mpactied by changes in the assumptions in obtaining the estmate, however the current
valuation is considered to represent the fair value as at 30 Apnl 2013

The valuation of Orca, 7digital and Ineda 1s based on the purchase pnce of the investment at the most recent funding rounds and any
changes In the Intervening penod to 30 April 2013 are not matenally different to these valuations

Loan note
Convertible loan notes are recognized at far value as they are convertible to shares in ineda and Orca  The value of the shares 1ssued are
expected to be equal to the face value of the convertible loan note

Long term borrowings
The far value approximates to book value as this instrument 13 at a vanable interest rate

20 Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabiltties at 30 Apnl 2013 or 30 Aprit 2012

21 Employee benefits

Pension
The Company participates in a number of defined contribution pension plans in the UK The assets of the schemes are held separately in
independently admirustered funds There were no outstanding contributions at the balance sheet date

Share-based payments

Share options

The following opticns have been granted under the Imagnation Technologies Key Employee Share Option Schemes, Savings Related Share
Option Scheme and Long Term Incentive Plan and remain outstanding as at 30 Apnl 2013




Date from

QOutstanding Exmrcise which first Expiry
Year of Issue at 30 Apnl 2013 price exercisable date
2003 32 500 BCp 2006 2013
2003 1500 34 5p 2008 2013
2004 26 500 82p 2007 2014
2005 483 715 64 25p 2008 2015
2006 313,025 67 Sp 2008 2015
2006 *145,000 55p 2009 2016
2009 1,544 139 0p 2012 2013
2010 328,981 305 Z2p 2013 2014
2011 388,185 366 2p 2014 2015
2012 391,428 381 2p 2015 2016
Sub-total of options with exercise pnce 2,112,378
Date from
Outstanding Exercise which first Expiry
Year of Issue at 30 Apnil 2013 pnge exercisable date
201 946,156 Op 2011 2016
2011 1,609 510 Op 2014 2019
2012 1,671,596 Op 2015 2020
2012 237 255 Op 2012 2017
2012 1,000 Op 2013 2018
2012 1,000 Op 2014 2019
2012 1,000 Op 2015 2020
2012 445,260 Op 2015 2020
2012 80,757 Op 2013 2018
2012 168,475 Op 2014 2019
Sub-total of mil cost options 5,162,009
7,274,387
*Options have been granted under the Long Term Incentive Plan
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows
Weighted average Number Weghted average Number
Bxercise price of options axerese prce of options
Year of Issue 2013 2013 2012 2m2
Qutstanding at the beginning of the period 148p 2,916,975 82p 4,991 728
Exercised during the pericd 87p (1,157,922} 53p {2,411,832)
Granted dunng the period 381 2p 392,747 355p 413,982
Lapsed during the penod 254p (39,422) 191p (76,804)
Outstanding at the end of the penod 216p 2,112,378 143p 2,916,975
Exercisable at the end of the penod 64p 1,002,240 53p 1,581,793

The weighted average share price dunng the pencd was 481 44p (2012 488 94p}

The options outstanding at the year end have an exercise price in the range of Op to 381 2p and a waighted average contractuat Ife of

2 QO years

“*Excludes 5 162,009 nil cost options Movements of which are shown with share awards below
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Employee Share Plan

The following awards have been granted under the Imagination Technologies Employee Share Plan and remain outstanding at

30 Apnl 2013
Date from

Outstanding which first Expiry
Year of Issue at 30 April 2013 exercisable date
2009 8,170 2012 2013
2009 1,564,128 2012 2019
2009 2,250,000 2012 2014
2010 1,130,818 2013 2013
2010 326,000 2013 2014
2011 1,813,058 2014 2014
2011 237 34 2013 2013
2011 345 038 2014 2014
2012 58.965 2015 2015
2012 54,685 2013 2014
2012 54,684 2014 2D15
2012 54 681 2015 2016
2012 241,770 2015 2016
2012 1,220,224 2015 2022
2013 61,381 2016 2023

9,420,944

The mavements In nil cost share options and share awards are as follows

Number of share
awards and options

Number of share
awards ard oplions

Year of Issua 2013 202
Qutstanding at the beginning of the penod 13,172,245 14,345,879
Exercised durning the period {2,142,263) (3,681,895)
Granted durning the penod 4,677,024 6,154,887
Lapsed dunng the penod {1,124,053) (3.647.416)
Qutstanding at the end of the perod 14,582,953 13,172,245
Exercisable at the end of the penod 5,005,709 1 029,689

As at 30 Apnl 2013 1 763 940 (2012 3 601,090) shares are held by the Company’'s Employee Benefit Trust

The Company has share option schemes and an employee share plan scheme, detalls of which are contained in the Director's

Remuneration Report on pages 59 to 65

In accordance with IFRS 2, the farr value of services received in return for share options and employee share plan awards granted to
employees 1s measured by reference to the fair value of share options and employee share plan awards granted In accordance with the
transtional provisions in IFRS 1 and IFRS 2, the recogmition and measurement pnnctples in IFRS 2 have not been applied to share option
grants made prior to 7 November 2002 which had not vested by 1 Aprl 2005 The estimate of the far value of the services 1s measured
based on the Black-Scholes or Monte Carlo Simulation models, financial models used o calculate the fair value of options and awards

under the employee share plan



The assumptions used in the calculation of the fair value of options are set out below

Date of share option grant Dec 2005 Jun 2006 Sep 2008 Sep 2007 Sep 2008 Oct 2000 Oct 2010
Share pnce at grant date (pence) 875 5 88 113 69 5 210 432
Exercise price (pence) 84-101 69-82 - - - - -
Expected volatility B80% 60% 60% 41% 46% 63% 54%
Risk free interest rate 4 4% 45% 4 5% 58% 4 4% 17% 08%
Time to maturity (years) 5 5 3 3 3 3 3
Far value per option (pence) 34 4 280 347 445 312 118 235
Date of share option grant Oct 2011 Jun 2012 Oct 2012 Oct 2012 Qct 2012 Nov 2012 Dec 2012
Share price at grant date (pence) 457 8 466 6 456 6 456 6 456 & 4870 4092
Exercise price (pence} - - - - - 3812 -
Expected volatihty B2 4% 512% 54 4% 54 0% 511% 51 0% 507%
Risk free interest rate 051% 038% 0 26% 0 26% 0 32% 0 35% 039%
Time to maturity (years) 325 3 1 2 3 325 3
Farr value per cption (pence) 2439 3336 2891 3213 3435 2330 3008
The assumptions Used in the calculation of the fair value of the empioyee share plan awards are set out below

Date of ESP grant Oct 2008 Qct 2009 Dec 2009 Apr 2010 Qct 2010 Dec 2010 Apr 2011
Share price at grant date (pence) 48 208 228 226 435 378 435
Expected volahity 49% 63% 59% 63% - - -
Rigk free interest rate 34% 17% 22% 17% - - -
Time to matunty {years) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Farr vatue per ophion (pence) 342 156 3 1450 1820 435 378 435
Date of ESP grant Oct 2011 June 2012 Oct 2012 Oct 2012 Oct 2012 Deac 2012 Jan 2013
Share prnice at grant date (pence) 4261 466 6 456 6 4566 456 6 409 2 464 5
Expected volatility 36 0% 51 2% 54 4% 54 0% 51 1% 50 7% 51 1%
Risk free interest rate 087% 0 38% 0 26% 026% 032% 039% 0 45%
Time 1o rmatunty (years) 3 3 1 2 3 3 3
Far value per option {pence) 356 2 3336 2891 3213 3435 3008 264 0O

The expacted volatiity 1s based on the histonc volatility, adjusted for any expected changes to future valatilty due to publicly avallable

informatian

Share-based payments for the year
Share-based payments for the current and pnior year are

2013 2012

Year of Award £1000 £ 000
2008/7 - 2
2007/8 - -
2008/9 - 3286
2009/10 1,819 3,024
20101 4,717 5,023
201112 2,096 1,940
2012/13 2,684 -
11,316 10315
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The future estimated expense for share award schemes outstanding at 30th Apnl 201315

2013 2012

Year of Award £'000 £ 000
To be incurred within one year 10,344 9,468
To be incurred after one year 6,790 7,718
17,134 17,186

A deferred tax asset of £7,809,000 {2012 £10,804,000) has been recognized relating share-based payments (note 5) It anses from the
potential future tax benefit on the exercise of ncentves

22 Related parties

Identity of related parties
Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes have been eliminated on consclidation and are not disclosed in this note

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel comprse the directors In addition to therr salanes, the Group alse prowvides non-cash benefits to directors and
centributes to past-employment benefit schemes on ther behalf Directors also participate in the Group's share iIncentive programmes The
share based payments are valued at their fair value at the date of grant Full details of directors’ compensation, including post-employment

benefits 1s given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 58 to 85

The key management personnel compensations are as folows

2013 2012

£'000 £000

Emoluments 1,157 948
Pension contnbutions 75 67
Share based payments 809 1,029
2,041 2,044

Details of key management’s interests in the Company’s shares and share options are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 58 to 85

During 2013 and 2012, ne member of the Beard of Directors had a personal interest in any business transactions of the Group




23 Principal subsidiaries

Cetalls of the Group's subsidiary undertakings, which are nvolved in the censing of the design of multmedia technology and the sale of

multimedia products, are as follows

Nama of subsiiary undertaking

Country of incorporation
and of aperation

Type of shares

Percentagea of issued
share capital held

Imagination Technologies Limited
PowerVR Technologies Limited”
Metagence Technologies Limited®
Ensigma Technologies Limited*
VideolLogic Systems Limited”

Cross Products Limited*

Pure Digital Limited*

Imagination Technotogies GmbH
Imagnation Technologies, Inc
Imagmination Tech , Inc

Imagination Technologles KK
Imagination Technologies India Private Limited
Pure Australasia Pty Limited

Bnstol Interactive Limited*

Caustic Graphics, Inc

HelloSoft, Inc

Imagination Technologies Hyderabad Private Lmited
Imagmation Technologies NZ Limited
MIFS Technologies, inc

MIRS Technologies International Limited
MIPS Technologies (Shangha) Co Lid
MIPS Technologies B V

Hellosoft Limited

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
Germany
us

us
Japan
Japan
Australia
UK

us

us

India

NZ

us
Cayman Istands
China
Netherlands
UK

All of the above companies are included in the Group financial statements  “non-trading

24 Acquisitions

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

“indirect holding

100%
100%
“100%
100%
100%
100%
“*100%
“*100%
“*100%
“*100%
100%
**100%
*M100%
100%
100%
100%
**100%
“*100%
100%
“*100%
“*100%
“*100%
~100%

The Group made three acquistions during the year It acquired the entira ssued share capital of MIPS Technolegies, Inc |, the trade and

assets of Nethra Imaging. Inc  and the trade and assets of Paragon Electroric Design Limited

Details of net assets acquired in each acquisition are set out below

MIPS Technologies, Inc

On 7 February 2013 the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of MIPS Technolegies, Inc {'MIPS"), a company based in the US, which
15 a provider of IP processor architeciures and cores used in products relating to the home entertainment, commumnications, networking and

portable multimedia markets
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Detalls of the fair value of the net assets acquired for MIPS are set out below

Fair value to Group
on acquisition

£ 000
Property, ptant and equipment 1977
Goodwill 23,236
Intangible assels — patents and trademarks 1,014
Intangible assets - developed technology 39,533
Intangible assets - customer relationships 7,153
Intangible assets - trade names 1,597
Intangible assets - In process R&D 766
Cash B2 335
Trade and other recevables 15,893
Trade and other payables (92,472)
Detferred tax lability (17,167)
Net assets acquired 63,885
Consideration transferred 63,865
Total consideration 63,865

The goodwill of £23,236 000 represents the beneiils that the Group expects 1o gain from future technclogy and future customers as welt as

value represented by the assembled workforce

The intangible asset relating to developed technology of £39,533 000 represents the value placed on MIPS technology and the underlying

patents

The intangible asset relating to customer relationships of £7, 153,000 represents the value placed on the MIPS customer base

The intangible asset relating to trade names of £1 597,000 represents the value placed on the MIPS brand

The intangible asset relating to in process R&D of £7885,000 represents the value placed on developing 1P which was not complete at the

acquisition date

The revenue attributable to the Group from the date of acquisition to 30 Apnil 2013 was £8,174 898 and the profit after tax was £978,660

The revenue and profit after tax for the penod from 1 May 2012 o the date of acouisiion were respectively £274,224,247 and

£141,724,895

Within the revenue and profit for the penod from 1 May 2012 to the date of acquisition were a number of transactions relating to part of
the MIPS business which was not acquired by the Company These transactions include the sale of patents and patent Iicenses totaling
£240,000,000 together with associated costs and tax habilities relating to the transactions Adjusting for these items would result in revenue

and profit after tax for the penod from 1 May 2012 1o the date of acquisition of respectively £26 169,486 and £3,708,005

Acguisition related transaction costs of £2,851,519 were incurred during the year These are included in acquisition and restructuring costs

in the Consohdated Income Statement




Nethra Imaging, Inc
The Group acquired the asseis and trade of Nethra Imaging, Inc {‘Nethra’}, a company based in the US, on 20 June 2012 Nethrais a
provider of semiconductar and systems-based imaging and video solutions for a wide range of digital consumer and industnal apphcatons

Detatls of the farr value of net assets acqured for Methra are set out below

Fair value to Group
on acgulsition

£1000
Intangible assets - developed technology 2,063
Trade and other recavables 755
Trade and other payables {B1)
Net assets acquired 2,737
Consideration transferred 1,593
Deferred and contingent consideration 1,144
Total consideration 2,737

The imtangible asset relating to developed technology of £2,063,000 represents the value placed en the technology

The revenue altributable to the Group from the date of acquisition to 30 April 2013 was £1,361,880 and the loss was £2,480,904 The
revenue and loss for the peried from 1 May 2012 to the date of acquisiton were respectively £211,864 and £.385,818 Acquisition related
transaction costs of £76 844 were incurred during the year These are included in acquisition and restructunng costs in the Consolidated
Income Statement

Paragon Electronic Design Limited
The Group acquired the assets and trade of Paragen Electronic Design Limited (‘Paragon'), a company based 1 New Zealand, on 2 July
2012 Paragon 1s a provider of contract electronics, software design and development

Details of the farr value of net assets acquired for Paragon are set out below

Fair vatue to Group
on acquisitron

£:000
Property, plant and equipment 4
Intangible assets - software patents and trademarks 55
Goodwill a3
Net assets acquired 152
Consideration transferred 152
Total consideration 152

The goodwill of £93,000 represents the benefits that the Group expects to gan from future technology as well as the value represented by
the assembled workforce

The revenue attributable to the Group from the date of acquisition to 30 April 2013 was £470 260 and the profit was £45,179 The revenue
and profit for the penod from 1 May 2012 to the date of acquisiion were respectively £94 052 and ££9,036 Acquisition related transaction
costs of £20,257 were incurred dunng the year These are included n acguisiiion and restructuning costs in the Consobdated Income
Statement
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Imagination Technologies Group plc parent
company balance sheet

As at 30 Apnl As at 30 Apni
2013 2032
Notes £'000 £000
Fixed assets
investment In subsidiary undertakings 3 117,298 74,138
Current assets
Oebtors 4 72,389 71,412
Cash 533 6835
72,922 72,047
Current hakihties
Creditors amounts falling due within cne year 5 (6,667) (1,831)
Net current assets 66,255 70,216
Total assets less current liabibities 183,553 144,354
Non-current llabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 5 (26,309} -
Net assets 157,244 144,354
Caprtal and reserves
Called up share capital 8 26,571 26,425
Share premium account 9 99,236 98,348
Other capital reserve 9 1,423 1423
Warrant reserve 9 - -
Share based payment reserve 9 34,848 23532
Retained earnings 9 (4,834} {5,374)
Equity shareholders’ funds 10 157,244 144,354

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Cirectors on 18 June 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

(S Sy

G S Shingles
Director




1 Accounting policies
The parent Company finzncial statemenis present information about the Company as a separaie entity and not about its Group

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently 11 dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
financial statements

There are no new accounting policies which would have a significant impact In the current year

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with apphcatie UK Accounting Standards and under the histoncal accounting
rules The following principal accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and preceding year in dealing with
tems which are considered matenal in relation to the Company s inancial statements The financial statements are prepared on & going
concern basis which assumes that the Company will continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future

Under section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 the Company 1s exempt from the requrement to present its own profit and loss account
The Company made a profit for the year of £571,000 (2012 £1,200,000 loss)

Under Financial Reporting Standard 1 the Comgany 1s exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash fiow staterment on the grounds that it
15 Included i the consolidated accounts which it has prepared

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contaned in FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with ds
subgidares

Forelgn currencies

Transactions in forexgn currencles are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction Monetary assats and habilities
denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated using the contracted rate or rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the
gains or losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidianas are stated at cost less any provisions for iImpairment

Details of the Company's subsidiary undertakings are included in note 23 of the Group financial statements

Share based payment

The far value of options granted s recognized as an employae expense with a coresponding increase in equity The far value 1s measured
at grant date and spread over the penod during which the employees become uncondiionally entitied to the options The fair value of the
options granted 1s measured using an option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted The amount recognized as an expense I1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where forferture 18
only due to share prices nct achieving the threshold for vesting

As the Company grants options ovar 118 own shares o the employees of its subsidiaries, n accordance with UITF 44, it recognizes
an increase n the cost of Investrnent In its subsidiaries equivalent to the equity-settled share-based payment charge recognized in its
subsidary s financial statements with the corresponding credit being recognized directly n equity

Transactions of the Company's Employee Benefit Trust are included in the Group's finegncigl statements In particular, the Trust's purchases
and sales of shares in the Company are debited and credited directly to equity

Taxation

The charge for taxation 15 based on the profit or loss for the penod and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences
between the treatment of certan tems for taxation and accounting purposes

Deferred tax 1s recognized in respect of all iming differences between the treatiment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes
which have ansen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19

Related parties
The Company has a related party relationship with its subsidianes (see note 23) and with its Board of Direclors (see the Drectors'
Remuneration Report on pages 59 to 65} Detals of Remuneration cf Key Management Personnel are disclosed n note 22
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2 Employees

The Company does not employ any staff

Detalls of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Oirectors’ Remuneration Report on page 62 The Non-Executive Directors are
remunerated by the Group

3 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

2013 2012
€000 £000
Cost and net book value
Al beginning of penod 74,138 63 478
Addition - Further investment in subsidiary undertaking 31,833 31933
Addition — Revaluation of deferred consideration due on acquisition of subsidiary 81 -
Additicn ~ Share based payment 1o employees of subsidiary 11,146 8,798
Adjustment - Purchase of subsichary underiakings - 1,862
Al end of penod 117,208 74 138
The adjustment made to investments in the pror year represented a correction of the balance recorded in the Apnl 2011 accounts
in refation to the HelloSoft acquisition Investments were increased in the prior vear to reflect the deferred consideration which was
nadvertenily excluded from cost of acquisitions as at 30 Aprl 2011
4 Debtors
2013 2012
£'000 £000
QOther debtors 73 77
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 72,316 71,335
72,389 71,412
£31 933,000 (2012 £nil) of the amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are due after more than one year
5 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2013 2012
£'000 £ 000
Bank loan 4643 -
Accruals and deferred income 362 17
Deferred and contingent consideration 1,662 1,814
6,667 1,831

In February 2013, the Group drew down a $48 000,000 term lpan which was usad to part fund the acquisition of MIPS Technologies, Inc
The loan is repayable in six, six monthly instalments commencing on the first anniversary of draw-down in February 2014 and finishing
n August 2016 The loan 1s subject to vanable quarterly interest payments at a rate of 1 5% above 3 month LIBOR on the outstanding

balance

At the balance sheet date the Group’s bank loan equated to £30,952,000 (2012 £nd} of which £4 643,000 15 due within one year (2012

£nil) and £26,309,000 1s due after one year but less than five years

The loan 1s secured by a debenture dated March 2013 which gives HSBC Bank plc a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the

Company and its pnnciple subsidiary Imagination Technologies Limsted The bank also has a legal charge over freehold land and buldings

owned by the Group which have a net book value of £25,361,000




6 Operating leases

At 30 Apnl 2013, the Company had no operating lease commitments (2012 £rul)

7 Capital commitments

At 30 Apnil 2013, the Company had no capital commitments (2012 Enil}

8 Called-up share capital
Details of the Company's called-up share capital are shown in note 16 of the Group financial statements

9 Reserves

Share Other capital Warrant Share based Retaned
preamium reserve raserve payment reserve aarnngs
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
At 1 May 2011 97,300 1,423 - 13,317 (3,756}
Loss for the financial year - - - - {1,200}
Issue of new shares 1,048 - - - -
Shares 1ssued at ni cost - - - - {418)
Share-based remuneraticn - - - 10,215 -
At 30 Apnl 2012 98,348 1,423 - 23,532 (5,374)
Share Other capital Warrant Share based Retained
premium raserve ragerve payment resarve sarnings
£'000 £:000 £'000 £000 £000
At1 May 2012 98,348 1,423 - 23,632 (5,374)
Profit for the financial year - - - - 571
Issue of new shares 888 - - - -
Shares 1ssued at nil cost - - - - (31)
Share-based remuneration - - - 11,316 -
At 30 Apnl 2013 99,236 1,423 - 34,848 {4,834)

10 Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds
2013 2012
000 £ 000
Equity shareholders’ funds at the start of the penod 144,354 134 099
Profit / (loss) for the Hinancial year 571 {1 200)
Share-based remuneration 11,316 10 215
Issue of new shares 1,003 1240
Equity shareholders’ funds at the end of the penod 157,244 144,354
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Consolidated five year record

2013 2032 2011 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Income statement
Revenue 151,467 127,498 98,045 80,927 64,088
Cost of sales {20,816) {21,014) {20,791) (25,004) {21,755)
Gross profit 130,651 106,485 77.254 55,923 42,333
Research and development expenses (83,956) (59,633) (44 ,696) {35 370) (31,114)
Sales and administration expenses (28,750} (23,171) {16,298) (10 562) (8 100)
Gain/{write down) of nvestiments 1,763 822 - 148 (5817)
Imparment of investments {5,679) {145) - - -
Acquisition & restructunng costs (2,744) - - - -
Contingent acquisition consideralion release - 4,008 - - -
Total operating expenses {119,366) (78.118) (60,984) (45,784) (39,731}
Operating profit 11,285 28 367 16 260 10139 2,802
Net financing income 875 177 100 52 120
Profit before taxation 12,160 28,544 16,36G 10,11 2,722
Taxation {5,884) (8,083) 2,918 4,016 5,404
Profit for the financial year 6,276 20,481 19,278 14,207 8126
Earnings per share Basic 24p 80p 77p 6 Op 37p
Diluted 23p 75p 74p 586p 3 5p
Statement of financial position
Non-current assets 189,626 99,971 91 396 26,139 20,109
Current assets 149,102 112,747 83 153 55,007 36,299
Total assets 338,728 212,718 174,549 81,146 56,408
Current l:abilities (96,497} {26,874) {17 686) {11 987) (10 304)
MNon-current kabilities (50,839) (8 457) {13,793) {373) (506)
Total habihties {147,336) {35,331) {31.479) {12,360Q) {10,810)
Net assets 191,392 177,387 143,070 68,786 45,698
Called up share capital 26,571 26,425 25,815 24,345 22,839
Capital reserves 103,026 102,935 101,078 64,595 59,629
Retained earnings 61,795 48,027 (16,177) {20,154) (36,870)
Total equity 191,392 177,387 143 070 68,786 45,598

These tables are for representative purposes only Full detads can be found in the Group's Annual Reports
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